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60
60

60
60

2024
2024 60

2025

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

66/252



20

EDINETOOOO

OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15.315

2038 15

20.315 15.315
15
20.315 15.315
20 15

15.315

2038

20.315 15.315

20 15
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897
United States real property interest
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30
10
FIRPTA United States real
property holding corporation
15
183
FATCA FATCA
30
FATCA
US IGA US IGA
US IGA
FATCA FATCA US 1GA
FATCA
30
FATCA

30
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exempted trust
50

Specified U.S. Person

30

OECD
CRS OECD
100
CRS CRS
TIA
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CRS
CRS
CRS
FATCA CRS
FATCA CRS
IGA CRS
1GA
FATCA CRS EU
FATCA
30
TIA TIA
FATCA
FATCA FATCA
foreign financial institutions
passthru
FATCA
FATCA

FATCA

71/252



FATCA

TIA
HMRC CRS

TIA

IGA CRS

1GA

721252

EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FATCA

TIA

HMRC

1GA

us



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

731252



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025

117,056,605 58.80
9,735,310 4.89
4,221,315 2.12
1,152,147 0.58
600,705 0.30
134,844 0.07
44,325 0.02
132,945,251 66.78
11,318,388 5.69
1,142,702 0.57
181,960 0.09
12,643,049 6.35
68,420,084 34.37
65,989,306 33.15
2,430,778 1.22
1,156,459 0.58
445,971 0.22
351,064 0.18
797,035 0.40
263,185 0.13
137,594 0.07
39,834 0.02
103,733 0.05
83,537 0.04
10,248 0.01
362 0.00
206 0.00
63,648 0.03
119,831 0.06
14,607 0.01
1,390,096 0.70
1,592,244 0.80
147,445,453 74.06
51,631,653 25.94

199,077,106
28,382 100.00

74/252



EDINETOOOO

OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025
7 7) )
DISCOVER FINANCIAL
127,529| 180.75| 23,050,956| 185.50| 23,656,630 11.88
SERVICES
KELLANOVA 277,450  80.75| 22,403,558| 82.44| 22,872,978| 11.49
HESS CORP 106,822| 141.18| 15,081,363 133.84| 14,297,056 7.18
WALGREENS BOOTS
1,193,210 11.04| 13,167,600 10.97| 13,083,548| 6.57
ALLIANCE INC
JUNIPER NETWORKS
e 333,602| 37.52| 12,517,665 35.79] 11,939,616| 6.00
CHAMPIONX CORP 481,722 31.07| 14,967,826] 24.73| 11,912,985| 5.98
BEACON ROOFING
93,186| 119.06| 11,095,154| 124.17| 11,570,906 5.81
SUPPLY INC
FRONTIER
COMMUNICATIONS 317,696| 35.12| 11,158,489| 36.25| 11,516,480| 5.78
PARE
HESS CORP 72,775| 149.13| 10,852,613 133.84| 9,740,206 4.89
10 | COVESTRO AG-TEND 143,757 26.83| 3,856,428| 67.72| 9,735,310 4.89
BERRY GLOBAL GROUP
11 e 112,063 68.80| 7,709,906] 69.62| 7,801,826 3.92
12 | NORDSTROM INC 310,282 24.14| 7,490,566| 24.16| 7,496,413 3.77
13 | EDR-VAR-10NOV30 9.500 [2030/11/10| 7,360,678 1.00| 7,360,678 1.00| 7,360,678 3.70
14 | ANSYS INC 22,167| 341.90| 7,578,851| 318.00| 7,049,106| 3.54
DUN & BRADSTREET
15 744,342 8.69| 6,467,405 9.15| 6,810,729 3.42
HOLDINGS IN
16 | TELECOM ITALIA-RSP 14,258,136 0.31| 4,397,907 0.44| 6,335,634 3.18
H&E EQUIPMENT
17 69,410| 92.95| 6,451,396 90.38| 6,273,276] 3.15
SERVICES INC
SPIRIT AEROSYSTEMS
18 159,428 34.69| 5,530,521| 35.80| 5,707,522 =2.87
HOLD-CL A
INDUSTRIVARDEN AB-
19 112,364 30.51| 3,428,071| 35.00| 3,933,256 1.98
A SHS
ATLAS COPCO AB-B
20 " 242,396 12.63| 3,060,545 14.30| 3,465,836| 1.74
21 | AMEDISYS INC 35,512 89.46| 3,176,816] 94.69| 3,362,631 1.69
UNITED STATES
22 72,613  40.43| 2,935,670| 43.25| 3,140,512 1.58
STEEL CORP
FUJITSU GENERAL
23 o 148,200 18.50| 2,741,761 19.75| 2,927,266 1.47
24 | AZEK CO INC/THE 56,820 47.23| 2,683,699| 49.17| 2,793,839| 1.40
25 | ENSTAR GROUP LTD 6,638| 326.81| 2,169,334| 334.55| 2,220,743 1.12

751252
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SPRINGWORKS
26 43,359 46.14| 2,000,440 46.18| 2,002,319 1.01
THERAPEUTICS INC
27 | AABA_ESCROW 1,056,183 5.56| 5,876,181 1.51| 1,598,322 0.80
28 | TOPCON CORP 57,000 22.421 1,277,809 22.701 1,294,050 0.65
29 | HEINEKEN NV 13,159| 109.34| 1,438,791 88.53| 1,164,938 0.59
NATIONSTAR MTG HLD
30 | INC 6.000% 6.000 |2027/ /15| 1,158,000 1.00| 1,156,800 1.00|] 1,158,148 0.58
01/15/27 SR:144A
2025
2025
1 5,599,104,204 37,215,350.01 2025 30 39,436,445 19.81
2 4,848,382,066 33,794,624.85 2025 30 34,271,237 17.22

76/252



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025

14,536 2,072 100.41 14,315

2019 12 30
134,977 19,244 111.41 15,884

2020 12 30
158,141 22,546 112.59 16,052

2021 12 30
88,999 12,689 111.95 15,961

2022 12 30
65,998 9,409 118.79 16,936

2023 12 29
58,427 8,330 122.06 17,402

2024 12 30
2024 61,723 8,800 118.67 16,919
60,020 8,557 119.39 17,021
60,366 8,606 121.04 17,257
60,714 8,656 121.47 17,318
60,409 8,613 121.37 17,304
10 59,802 8,526 120.72 17,211
11 57,832 8,245 120.69 17,207
12 58,427 8,330 122.06 17,402
2025 58,759 8,377 122.83 17,512
57,711 8,228 123.40 17,593
57,841 8,246 124.21 17,709
58,504 8,341 125.63 17,911
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1,262 10,069

2019 12 30
21,572 10,669

2020 12 30
26,072 12,017

2021 12 30
21,518 13,617

2022 12 30
17,955 15,551

2023 12 29
16,093 17,768

2024 12 30
2024 17,013 17,330
17,253 17,833
16,174 16,847
15,727 16,475
15,174 16,176
10 15,624 17,033
11 15,269 16,774
12 16,093 17,768
2025 16,299 17,691
15,828 17,249
15,773 17,285
15,105 16,553
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801 10,013

2019 12 30
9,603 11,008

2020 12 30
11,859 11,073

2021 12 30
10,253 10,796

2022 12 30
7,588 10,834

2023 12 29
5,776 10,523

2024 12 30
2024 6,784 10,557
6,615 10,576
6,534 10,661
6,426 10,650
6,345 10,605
10 6,211 10,494
11 5,924 10,458
12 5,776 10,523
2025 5,661 10,543
5,620 10,564
4,815 10,592
4,858 10,687
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10.96

.06

.57

A1
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.75

100x

100
10,000
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13.31
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RELESS2HRES PR (A TR L) DS BT
200
159 | 150 12630 13315 1430% 14.36%
10.96% e
100 | - 5.56%
6.11% 50
el o 275%  2.90% S
| carw .06 ,
: 257% L i
o a0 ]
Y1 G W0 021 o230 W2 I3 L i 03 20238 4 05

R~ gl 95 AR

A 0.94%

-2.50% 2 B7%
L0198 AZDE  QONE M2 wnie A NG
GENEER%) =100x{a=-b). b

A=MESNER(ES) FLERMFRREORRHS 1 D4CVEHAEEER (UESHEE(ES) S RO i (3
S0 DS RN A 1-#)

b=UESHFE(EE) E-IHMOERNOSHEE (EF)xRECSSEM OV REERE (SEESOM) (2L,
ZSFIT VT (RS EAMHE CE RV 2 S A BB HIC DVT R 100H b, R~ 2R L) 7S A BETES M LU
(A LTgsh)) O 52 BRREZE - DLVTIR10.000M))

(FE2) 2025 L DWTIF2025F 1 BB SEFABXHETORERTT,

144,767 0 144,767
144,767 0 144,767
1,211,870 145,100 1,211,537
1,211,870 145,100 1,211,537
430,400 237,360 1,404,577
430,400 237,360 1,404,577
45,040 654,630 794,987
45,040 654,630 794,987
4,090 243,488 555,589
4,090 243,488 555,589
3,600 80,515 478,674
3,600 80,515 478,674

82/252



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

125,299 0 125,299
125,299 0 125,299
2,069,745 173,150 2,021,894
2,069,745 173,150 2,021,894
655,885 508,155 2,169,624
655,885 508,155 2,169,624
192,690 782,053 1,580,261
192,690 782,053 1,580,261
13,270 438,922 1,154,609
13,270 438,922 1,154,609
3,888 252,787 905,710
3,888 252,787 905,710
79,972 0 79,972
79,972 0 79,972
855,304 62,930 872,346
855,304 62,930 872,346
402,380 203,708 1,071,018
402,380 203,708 1,071,018
63,500 184,820 949,698
63,500 184,820 949,698
0 249,285 700,413

0 249,285 700,413

0 151,541 548,872

0 151,541 548,872
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1933

501
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31
183

CFTC 4.7
10
CFTC
500
500
500 500
3.30 3.00
1.65 1.50
10 0.825 0.75

0.55 0.50
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5,000
5,000
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90

90

150

12 31
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2024 12 30
2024 12 30
5,363,217 764,634
210,051,480 200,632,204 28,604,133
54,239 281,465 40,128
72,190,136 10,292,148
791,573 112,855
92,607 13,203
77,050 10,985
279,428,252 39,838,086
83,899,489 78,978,245 11,259,928
13,855 693 99
1,762,324 251,255
360,864 51,448
92,886 13,243
375,638 53,555
81,570,650 11,629,528
197,857,602 28,208,558
905,710 17,768
548,872 10,523

478,674 122.06 17,402
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2024 12 30
(1,663,371) (237,147)

(4,421,245) (630, 337)

2,123,138 302,696

17,536 2,500

(3,943,942) (562, 288)

4,915,428 700,793

571,737 8,001,347 1,140,752
12,916,775 1,841,545

2,890,821 412,144

2,576,004 367,261

2,408,230 343,341

1,036,665 147,797

1,093,604 155,915

965,918 137,711

10,971,242 1,564,170

1,945,533 277,375

(1,998,409) (284,913)
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2024 12 30

1,945,533 277,375
(1,663,371) (237,147)
(4,421,245) (630,337)
2,123,138 302,696
17,536 2,500
(1,998,409) (284,913)
429,365 61,215
437,042 62,309

(28,008,113) (3,993,117)
(10,460,841) (1,491,402)
(9,634,595) (1,373,604)
(47,237,142) (6,734,599)

(49,235,551) (7,019,513)
247,093,153 35,228,071
197,857,602 28,208,558
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2024 12 30

101/252

(1,998,409)

(440,722,115)

(284,913)

(62,833,752)

428,029,080 61,024,106
(124,904,608)  (17,807,650)
105,128,914 14,988,229
(4,316,406) (615,390)
1,565,709 223,223
(1,459,689) (208,108)
4,421,245 630, 337

(17,536) (2,500)
80,754,611 11,513,185
112,764 16,077
85,206 12,148
63,543 9,059
(16,388,483) (2,336,506)
(232,055) (33,084)
35,531 5,066
(58,348) (8,319)
30,098,954 4,291,208
866,407 123,524
(51,511,040) (7,343,929)
(50,644,633) (7,220,405)
(20,545,679) (2,929,197)
25,908,896 3,693,831
5,363,217 764,634
2,896,235 412,916
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2024 12 30
2019 12
2024 UBS
2024 UBS
UBS UBS
UBS AM UBS
UBS
UBS AM UBS
UBS AM
UBS AM UBS AG UBS
1940
UBS AM
UBS AM
UBS AM UBS
AM UBS
2024
UBS AM UBS AM
UBS AM 2024
UBS
UBS
AFS
MUFG

MUFG
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MUFG

ASC 946

GAAP

ASC 820
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TRPA

TRPA

TRPA
TRPA
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2024 12 30
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195,235,131 347,235 195,582,366
263,900 263,900

3,091,365 3,091,365

1,694,573 1,694,573

195,235,131 5,133,173 263,900 200,632,204
33,554 33,554

78,029 78,029
1,640 1,640
664,730 664,730

79,669 698,284 777,953
195,314,800 5,831,457 263,900 201,410,157
75,796,804 75,796,804
349,911 349,911

2,177,648 2,177,648
653,882 653,882
78,628,334 349,911 78,978,245
693 693

496,488 496,488

693 496,488 497,181
78,629,027 846,399 79,475,426

2024 12 30 2024 12 30
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9,497
7,011,536

65,169,103
72,190,136

2024 12 30

ASC 740

2024 12
30

2022 FASB ASU 2022-03 820
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ASU 2024 12 15

1.10

15

UBS
2024 12 30 UBS
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CFD

1SDA

2024 12 30
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2024 12 30

CFD
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2024 12 30
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744,399 38,465,238 887,642 497,181 30,375,131 69
33,554 44,487,535
777,953 497,181
2024 12 30
2024 12 30

569,451 380,458

(4,990, 696) (362,922)

(4,421,245) 17,536

33,554 33,554 33,554

78,029 78,029 78,029

1,640 1,640 1,640

664,730 (496,488) 168,242 168,242

698,284 (496,488) 281,465 79,669 281,465

113/252
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(693) (693) 693
(496,488) 496,488
(496,488) 496,488 (693) (693) 693

2024 12 30
100
1,000
1,000
2024 12 30
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2023 12 29 2024 12 30
1,154,609 3,888 (252,787) 905,710
700,413 (151,541) 548,872
555,589 3,888 (80,515) 478,674

2024 12 30

15,551 10,834 118.79

145 97 1.07

2,072 (408) 2.20

2,217 (311) 3.27

17,768 10,523 122.06

14.79 (2.41) 3.23

(0.53) (0.46) (0.48)

14.26 (2.87) 2.75

4.55 4.54 4.55

0.49 0.47 0.47

5.04 5.01 5.02

0.86 0.90 0.89
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2024 12 30
16,407,774 8.29
1,600,021 0.81
Kellogg Company 208,598 16,858,890 8.52
347,235 0.18
17,206,125 8.70
Hess Corporation 184,082 24,061,358 12.16
ChampionX Corporation 427,359 11,410,486 5.77
35,471,844 17.93
Discover Financial Services, Inc. 64,586 11,137,210 5.63
9,499,750 4.80
20,636,960 10.43
5,183,448 2.62
5,673,133 2.87
HashiCorp, Inc. 379,672 12,988,579 6.56
Juniper Networks, Inc. 453,928 16,954,211 8.57
Smartsheet Inc. 209,919 11,759,662 5.94
13,117,494 6.64
54,819,946 27.71
12,832,046 6.48
396,981 0.20
179,029,971 170,228,278 86.04
4,289,541 4,219,459 2.13
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15,822,821
199,142,333

666,534
666,534

422,500

2,723,370
3,145,870

6,520,684

576,059
7,096,743

210,051,480
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4,403,010 2.23
959,424 0.48
847,475 0.43

3,650,188 1.84

3,368,122 1.70

7,906,410 4.00

21,134,629 10.68
195,582,366 98.85
263,900 0.13
263,900 0.13
438,361 0.22
952,199 0.48

1,700,805 0.86

2,653,004 1.34

3,091,365 1.56

1,587,028 0.81

8,655 0.00
34,501 0.02
1,630,184 0.83
64,389 0.03
1,694,573 0.86
200,632,204 101.40




EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,945,433 0.98

Chevron Corporation 188,480 26,965,834 13.63
Schlumberger N_V. 314,103 11,876,234 6.00
1,607,943 0.81

40,450,011 20.44

Capital One Financial Corporation 65,831 11,713,310 5.92
3,336,618 1.69

2,730,125 1.38

63,721,688 60,175,497 30.41

3,870,412 1.96

821,657 0.42

3,646,990 1.84

3,331,143 1.68

3,951,105 2.00

17,011,183 15,621,307 7.90

80,732,871 75,796,804 38.31

335,051 349,911 0.18

335,051 349,911 0.18

781,951 0.40

1,395,697 0.70

2,171,567 2,177,648 0.70

660,000 653,882 0.33

660,000 653,882 0.33

83,899,489 78,978,245 39.92
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33,554 0.02

5,230 0.00

947 0.00

50,178 0.03

1,192 0.00

653 0.00

18,924 0.01

589 0.00

316 0.00

0.04

52,798 78,029 0.04
1,441 1,640 0.00

0.00

1,441 1,640 0.00
13,855 693 0.00

13,855 693 0.00

(1,317) (0.00)
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(93,728) (0.05)
14,546 0.01
(23,456) (0.01)
18,983 0.01
25,660 0.01

(2,466) (0.00)
1,291 0.00
(370,598) (0.20)
(4,573) (0.00)
(434,341) (0.23)
(435, 658) (0.23)
155,949 0.08
413,642 0.21
569,591 0.29
11,080 0.01
21,002 0.01
1,724 0.00
503 0.00
34,309 0.02
603,900 0.31
168,242 0.08
40,384 280,772 0.14

ASC815
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
i5tated in United States Dollars)

Decernber 20, 2024

..
Corh and cieh equialents ] 5 363 F17
Insestments i seceities at fair valus (com §3 1005 1480 00637 b
Doerivadtior srmels doost §58 239 R S65
[ froen brokers T 160136
Libigation charn reotivable 791572
Dotdends and inleent recahable 92 507

e

77,050

Secuntles sold, not, yet purchased. 3 1 valoe [peoceeds §83, 509 2580} TEATE AR
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1,762 224
D b Invegiprent hanager 6086

I
VN Class (Hadged) lhased on SA871 units censtanding I 10588
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Statement of Operations
(stated in United States Dollars)
Year Ended December 30, 2024

Dot reaitand kods o EwesiIrsen B in Securibes and foragh aurency b1 (1.663371)

Met realzed boss on deriaatve onitracks and foorign camency (4210 2455

et changs in unidalized appescaton’depreciation on investmen s in Securilies and foteign oamency FRFERE:]
in zod aps it o o curene 17

Interest 4,5015458

Sl
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
i5tated in United States Dollars)
Year Ended December 30, 2024

Pt imwestmen L incoms ] 1845533
Mt realzed koss cn invesimsn s in secunites and faeagn osrency [
et realized bofs on devrsatve onlrack and feeign asrency (4,421 7453
Pet change in unrealized appeedaton/depr ecialon on imvestments in securilies and foeeign camency 2023 138

Met change in unrealized appredaton/deprecation on derhea v confracts and foerign urnincy 17,536

.. i sionn e il e

Glasé 3ubsaiption 429385,
UG Chas ubscriplions a7, paz

YEN Clast récomnphons (26,008,113
YEN Clies {Hedged) redienpbons (10,250,241

e
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-
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
i5tated in United States Dollars)
Year Ended December 30, 2024

Pt changs in nel dwels esuling from cpdalions i {1,998 40
Adpustrrsnts b recofibe ret change in nel amsets resulting Trhom opsralions 1o ret cash provided by cpamting aomilies
Purchases of ifrsetments in Securilses (840,722,115
Proceeds fom sales of investments in securilkes 418,009,080
Convers of securities 90id, nol pet purchased 126 a0
Salm of seaurities sold, ol el purchaged 105,128, 04
\het sk thernent of divhcalhee coniracis (216 406
et realiend Boos e inuersliven i in securiiss 1.565. 709
et change in weealzed appreckationideprenation on inwrslmes in secur ke 11,450,685
(het. el oes on 4 i conlracts 4407, ka5
et change in wesalkzed apprecistion/epreiation on dethatie conlracts {17526
Changes i ammels and labiites.
D Facim eckers B0, 54611
Litigartion clam reophabie 112 el
Dirsiden oz and indarest mecevabie a5, s
Dther asets 6,543
D 1 beokins {16,388 453)
D Lo Insesrment Manags {332,058

— Ditvidends and intenest payable 35531

M enprs ather labilnms
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Motes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 30, 2024

1. Organization

MireteenT7 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund (the Trust) is an exem pted unit trust organized in the Cayman Idands and
registerad under the Cayman Islands Trusts Act and commenced operations on December &, 2019, The Trust 15 registered under the
Cayman Isfands Mutual Funds Act, The Trust's investment objective 15 1o redize consistently high nisk-adjusted appreciation in the
value of its assets. The Trust seeks to achisve itsinvestment abjective primanly through investments in the secunties of entities nvolved
in announced mergers, acquisitions of contests for contrad (including by shorting such securities), however, the Trust also may make
iFvestments in entities involved in other types of restructisning of corporate events when, in the manager's opinian, aitfactve
oppOTtunities exist.

Prior 1 April 1, 2024, the Trust's adwiser was UBS O'Connor LLC, & Delaware mited hability company Effective April 1, 2024,
management of UBS O'Connor LLC enacted a reorganization and statutory merger in which UBS O'Connor LLT merged wath and
into UBS Asset Management (Bmericas) LLC (the Investment Manager or UBS AM Amencas), formery known as UBS Asset
Management (Americas) Inc. As such, UBS O'Connar LLC has ceased to exist 2 a separate legal enuty and UBS AM Americas has
assumed Al rights and obligations of UES O'Connor LLC, induding itsrofe as the investment manages of the Trust. Accordingly, within
the organizatonal structure of UBS AM Americas, O Connor serves a5 a distinet business unit. UBS AM Americas is 3 wholly owned
subsidiary of UBS Group AG (UBS) and & registered with the LS. Securities and Bxchange Commission a5 an investment adviser under
the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended,

Im order to aval the Trust of the broader management and refated fund servces available through UBS &M Amencas and its filiates,
the Trustee (25 defined below) and UBS AM Americas have agreed 1o () terminate the Trust's existing investment mansagen ant
agreement with UBS AM Americas and (i) concurrently and simubtanecysly entered into 2 ripartite investment m anagement and sube-
delegation agresment by and among the Trustes, UES AM Americas and UES Fund Management (keland) Limited, a private limited
liakility company incorporated in Ireland thereinafter, the Manager), effective Aprl 1, 2024 (the Effective Date)

Im accordance with the Trust's Deed of Trust, from the Effectve Date, the Manager shall be the Trust's duly appointed manager and
in such capaaty shall be responsible for the Trust's investment management and related functions, induding responability for the
general aversght of the Trust's portfolio management and administrative senices. Pursuant 1o the INVesTmEnt managem ent
agreement, the Manager has sppoented UBS AM Amerncas as sub-adwiser and delegated to UBS AM Amencas the authaority to perform
in whole the discretionary investment management of the Trust and certain other related functions, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth therein and the ongoing supenision of the Manager ard the Trustee The foregaing changes are not anficipated
1o mpact the ongoing investment management of the Trust, which shall remain subject to the disoretion of UBS AM Americas. In
light of the foregoing, effective Apnl 1, 2024, except as set forth in this Supplement and unles the context athenwise expressly
requires, all references in the Confidentid Mem ceandum to the Manager shall mean (i) UBS Fund Management (ireland) Limited and
(i) UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC, in each case, acting in such party’s applicable.

AFS Controlled Subsidiary 3 Ltd. fthe Trustes) is a company duly incorporated and validy esdsting in the Cayman Islands and is
registerad with the Cayman |slands Maonetary Authority as a "controlled subadiary™ (within the meaning of the Banks and Trust
Companies Act (s Revised) of the Cayman ldands) of MUFG Ahernative Fund Services (Cayman) Limited, which is a duly
imcorporated, waldly existing  company licensed 1o undertake trust business pursuant 1o the provisons of the Banks and Trast
Companies Act.

The Trust’s administrator is MUFG Alternative Furd Sendces {reland) Limited (the Administratar), The Administrator provides cartain
administrative servces to the Trust, induding maintenance of the Trust's books and records, and sarves as registrar for the Trust's
Uit

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Investiment Manager has evaluated the structure, objectives and actnities of the Trust and determined that ot meets the
charactenistics of an investment company. As such, these financial statements have applied the guidance set forth in Accounting

Standards Codification (A5C) %46, Ananca’ Sendces—imestment Compamnes. The following 15 a summary of significant accounting
and reporting policies used in preparing the financid statements.

Audited finandal staternents a5 of and for the year ended Decernber 20, 2024 Page 11
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Use of Estimatas

The financial statements hawe been prepared in accordance with US generally accepted accounting prinaples (GAAF). The
preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
i the financial statements and accompanyng notes. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Imvestment Transactions

Investment transactions, which inchude securties sold, not yet purchased, are acoounted for on a trade-date basis. Dradends are
recognized on the ex-dnadend date, and interestis accrued as earned or incurred. Redized gains and losses on secunties transactions
are recorded on a first-mn, first-out cost bass.

Fair Value of Finencal Instruments

ASC B20, fair Value Massurement, darifies the defingtion of fair value for finanoal reporting, establishes a framework used 1o measure
far value and enhances drclosure requirements for fair value measurements. The Irvestment Manager has categonzed the Trust's
financial instrum ents, basad on the prionty of the valuation technique, into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The valuation hierarchy
is based upon the observability of the inputs to the valuation of the fmancd asset or liability as of the messurem ent date. & financisl
imstrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that s sianificant o the fair value
MmEasIrEmEnt

The three levels of the far value hierarchy are as follows
Level 1 —Inputs to the waluation methodology are quated prices (unadjusted) for identical asets or liabalibes in actve markets.

Level 7 = Inputs 1o the valuation methodology include quoted prices for smilar assets and labdines in acive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or lizbility, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —Inputs to the valuation methadology are unobsenvable and agnificant 1o the fair value measurement. This indudes stuations
where there is limtle, if any, market actwity for the asset or liakulity

Fair value is the price that would be recsived in the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the meaurement date. Where available, far value is based on observable market prices of parameters of
denved from such prices or parameters using market standard models. Thess waluation models involve some level of estimation and
judgment, the degree of which is dependent on the price transparency for the instruments or market and the instrument complexity
Agsets and liablities recorded at far value are cateqorzed for disclosure purposes based an the level of judgment associated with the
inpats used to measure their value & desaibed above

The availability of obsenvable inputs can vary depending on the financial asset or liability and 15 affected by a wide vanety of factors,
inchuding, for example, the type of product, whether the product is new, whether the product 15 raded on an active exchange or in
the secondary market and the current market conditions. To the extent that the valuation is based on models or inputs that are less
observable or unobsenvable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment, Accordingly, the degres of
judgrment exereised by the Irwestment Manager in determining fair value is least for assets and habilities clasufied as Level 1 and
greatest for assets and labalities classfied as Level 3. In certain cases, inputs used 1o memure far value may fall into different levels
af the fair value haerarchy

The valuation process is governed by the Investment Manager's Valuation Policy and Procedures {the Valuation Policy), which has
bieen approved by the Trustee. The Vauation Policy governs the valuation of all investments and defines the valuation prinaples and
pricing corventions for each imvestment type & descnbed below, In addition, the Valuanon Pohcy establshes avaluation committes
(thiz Valuation Committes) The Valuation Committee membership includes representation from the Investment Manager's Legal,
Comphance, Partfalio Accaunting, Valustion and Market Risk Cantrol teams. The Vauation Committee is specficaly responsible for
the implementation of the Vauation Policy The Valuation Committes will escalate issues to the Trustes a5 deemed necessany. The
Wahyation Committes also reviews and approves the vauation methodology implemented for any new investment types, as well a3
for irvestments in private securities or securnties where the valuation is driven by uncbservable inputs. The voting members of the
Valuauon Committes are nonanvestm ent team personnel, chared by head of the asset managers global vauation team, although
the Vauation Committes may cbtan nput from investment team personnel in readung ther condusions. The Portfalho Adeounting
teamn of the Investment Manages holds a monthly valuation meeting attended by representatives of the Trust's Administrator 1o
discuss the valuation process and any valuations that significantly diverge from the independent sources. I these items cannot be
resolved, they are escalated 1o the Vauation Commities a appropriate

The Imvestment Manager is respansible for the valuation of Al assets and liabilities of the Trust. The Administrator also performs an
independent review of all assets and habilines, as defined by the Vauation Pobicy. Any changes to the valuation methodology are
reewed by the Administrater and the Valuation Committes Any matenal changes are revewed and appraved by the Trustes.

In addition to the Valuation Committes, the Investment Manager has created a committes for transactions requiring pre-approval
(TREA Commites). This committes is comprised of representatives from the logistics teams of the Investment Manager, including

Portfolio Accounting, Tax, Valuation, legal, Compliance, Market Risk Control and Information Technology Under the TRPA
Committea’s remit as wel as other sub working groups is the approval of new mstrument types prior to trading, and also an annual

Audited finandal staternents a5 of and for the year ended Decernber 20, 2024 Page 12
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avaluation of dormant instrumant types. An instrumeant type made dommant would need re-approva through the TREA Committes
price to trading, The TRPA Committes evaluates the rélevant pnong models or picing sources 1o be used in determining the
instrument’s farr value and agrees on a valuation methodology. The Portfolio Accounting team of the Investment Manager also reviews
daily prafit and loss reporting and analyzes matenal changes to asast in evaluating the remsonableness of investment valuations. In
additian, reviews of stale pricing and back-testing of prices for certan less hquid investm ents are pedormed, and & summary of thess
results is prosaded 1o the Valuation Committes on a quarerly basis for review

The followang is @ desaiption of the valuation methodologies used for instruments mesured a far value, incduding the genera
classheanon of such instruments pursuant 1o the valuation hierarchy as descnbed above The valuation methodologies disclosed
below are general guidelines and the actual valuation methodology could vary from instrument 1o instrument to provade the maost
appropriate fair value measurement. The net change in unrealized sppregaton/depreciation on these instruments 15 reflected in the
statament of operations.

Exchange and Nor-Exchange-Traded Instruments

Generally, the fair value of finanoal instruments that are listed on a secunties exchange are determmed by their last sales price or the
official closing price on the date as of which the value is being determined on the primary exchange on which such financisl
instruments are tradng. The far values for exchange-traded common equity secunties are determined in this manner The fair value
of wochange-wraded funds is determined by the officid composte of the closng prices. Exchange-traded options and warranits
represent standard derivative contracts {dervatives) traded on a regulated exhange. The fair values for non-US. exchange-traded
options and warrants are determined by the settlement price & quoted on the exchange on which the instrument s traded, The far
value of 13 exchange-traded options and warrants is determined by the composite exchange mid-price. Exchange-traded comemon
equity sequrities, funds, options and warrants are generdly clasified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy

Securities traded cutnide of exchanges, and actively quoted by brokers or dealers, are generally classified within Level 2 of the far
vahue hierarchy, but if they are rarey quoted or the quotes or pricing sources are not deem ed 1o be representative of far value, other
impts &nd assumptions, such as analysis performed by the Invesiment Manager, may be used in the valuation that may result in the
clasafication of the security within Level 3 of the far value hierarchy. Generally, fair vaue for non-exchange traded instruments is
based on the market approach, the income approach or the asset-based spproach The Irvestment Manager may consider the cost
of the security, accrued interest and dnadends related to the mvestrment, discount rates, the far value of similar publicly traded
securities, discounts for lack of control, discounts for ladk of marketability, developments since the acquisition of the sacurity and
other factors relevant 10 the valuation. Alse, the Investment Manager may receive independent valuations prowded by a third-pamy
vahiation agent

Fixed Income Instruments

The fair valee for fiked income instrum ents is detemmined by using quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotations, external pricing
prosders or alternative priong sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. The types of instruments valued based on quated
rmarket prices indude bonds badeed by governments worldwide. These secunties are generally classfied wathin Level 1 or Lewel 2 of
the fair value hierarchy. The types of instruments that trade in markets that are not considered 1o be as active as the markets described
abova, but are valued based on quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotatons, eqernal prcing prowders or alternative pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transparency, include convertible bonds and corporate bonds. Such instruments are generally
classrfied within Level 2 of the far vaue hierarchy. If a fizted income instrument 15 rarely quoted or the quates or pricing sources are
not deemed 1o be representative of fair value, other inputs and assumptions, such as analysis perform ed by the Investment Manager,
iy be used in the valuation that may result in the dassfication of the security within Level 2 of the fair value haerarchy

Crver-the-Counter Derivatives

Thee fair values for overabe.counter (OTC) dervatives are generally deterrmined using market standard quantitanve pricing models
using inputs based on ohsenable market data or inputs cormoborated by observable market data in addition to counterparty quotes
The appropriate model is selected based upon the contractual terms of and specific rigks mherent in the instrument. Valuaton models
require a variety of inputs, including, but not limited 1o, the terms of the denvatve, observable market prices, tme value of money,
credit spreads, yield curves and measures of valatility. For OTC derivatives that trade in liquid markes, such & certain swaps, model
imputs can qenerdly be verified and cbserved, and madel selection does not require significant judament by the Investmant Manager
These madel valuations are also validated by comparing such values 1o quotes provided by the counterparty to the transaction or an
imdependent party. The Trust trades OTC cpmons, warrants and contracts for differences. As the significant inputs for these
instruments can generally be corroborated to market obsenvable inputs, thess instruments e generally classified within Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy. Certain of these instiuments may be classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy because they trade
irfrequertly and therefore have little & no pridng transparency, of the lowest level of sigrificant input to the valuation madel may
not b readily observable

Although the Trust's functional currency is the United States Dollars (U5 Dollar), 2 portion of the Trust™s Units are denominated in
Japanese Yen (JPY). For the YEM Class (Hedged) Units, the Trust enters into forward currency contracts with an affiliste of the
Administrator to minimize the fluctuations of the net assat values of the Units denominated in foreign currency. The fair value for
forward currency contracts is determined by cbtaning independent mid-market quates for various forward qurrency settlements as
available and irterpalating values falling between those settlemeant dates 1o arrive at avalue for the individual contract. These contracts
are generaly classified within Level 2 of the fair value hiersrchy
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Breakdown by Levels
The following table represents the fair value of financia instruments shown by level 2t December 30, 2024

Lot 1 Livend 2 Lot 7' Tatal
sty
IrPEStmesnits in BOCUTMS |
Cormmon equities 5 195.235.131 5 34135 ¥ - F 195 522 %6
Corvairlibhe Bt = = 253900 263900
Corporale bonds — F091. %5 — .09 65
Ko omc raregri-trakind egruities — 1ERATTE = 1854,573
Tk WA DR I Gl e 195 135 131 5133.1713 253 500 300830 2o
Deésrbva v carrisaits:
Funvard qursendy gortracts - EER] — 33,55
Exchangebiaded cpliors and wamants 75,009 - - TE 0
Crer ARs=runber ol and wariants 15 = = 1640
Comrimts fo-d 0% - G54, T3% — EL T30
Total dervative contracs T8 665 G9E 184 - a3
Total assets. 3 195 M4 800§ SEN4ET 4 53800 4 1o 410,157
Lewel 3 irwestmens were not corgdered sgrebcant to the Trust
vl 1 vl 2 vl 3 Taal
Labifies
Socuaiion sobd, ek Yot purchasod:
Conmmmn equiis ] WS TREEW  § - % - % TE, e Bl
Carparae bend - 30011 — Mam
Exchange-tuded fund FREEE - - FATT S
Gowerniment. bords B53 882 -— - ES3ER]
Tt sacurities sold, rod et purchassd TRE8IM nm1 — TEHTE ME
Darbvanhve €0NTRS
Exchange-tiadad opliore and wanants 593 - - £33
Coontracts for dfferences - 496,458 - 496 458
Totml derhvatig contracs 693 A06 4T e 497,151
Tokm| Wbt 5 FEEHE! 3 M-EE.H:‘ 5 — 3 ﬂﬁ!&ﬂ!ﬁ

For more detaled information about the financid instruments, refer to the condensed schedule of investments The balances of
contracts for differences in the table sbove are reported on a gross basis by level before netting by counterparty. See Note 6 for
further discussion on dervative netting

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of monies held at an affiliate of the Administrator. The Trust has not experienced any losses in sudh acoounts and does
rvot believi it is exposed to any significant credit risk on such accounts, Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments
of sufficient credit qualiy that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and have original maturties of three months or less
Cash equivdents are held 1o meet short-term liquidity requirements, rather than for investment purposes. At December 30, 2024, the
Trust held no cash equralents. At December 20, 2024, the Trust held no restncted cash and cash equivaents

Due from Brokers and Due to Brokers

D from brokers and due 1o brokers include accrued commissions, net receivables and payables for unsettled rades, net unrealized
gains and losses on foreign currency balances, cash, foreign cumencies, margin balances and collateral held at such beokers. The Trust
has elected to not offset far value amounts recognized for cash collateral receivables and payables sgainst fair value amounts
recognized for net derneative positions executed with the same counterparty undes the same master neting arrangerment. Margin
balances are collateralized by certan of the Trust's secunties and cash balances held by the brokers. In relstion 1o margin debit
balances, the Trust is charged interest at fluctuating rates based on 3 predefined indax rate and a predefined spread Certan
investments in sscurities are pledged to the brokers on terms that permit the brokers 1o sell or repledge the securtiss, subject 1o
certain bmitations. Certain cash and securnities 2t the brokers that are related 1o securities sold, not yet purchased, are partialy restricted
unitil the securities are purchased

Thie followenyg table presents the breakout of the due from and 1o brokers in the statement of assets and lisbdities

Due from Brokers Dse b Brakers
Ursertled trarsachions, net £ 9497 ¥ —
Caeh collitersl 7011 536 =
Met recenable fomfpapable 1) brokers GE. 160,103 —
Total £ 290,136 % —
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Texation

There is currently no takation imposed on income or capital gains by the government of the Cayman ldands. The only tases payable
bry the Trust are wathholding taoes applcable to certan investment incorme and capetals gains taxes in certain junisdictions. For the
year ended December 30, 2024, no ather ta] habibty or édpenza has been recorded in the financal statem ents,

ASC 740, fncorme Taves, defines how uncertan tax positions should be recognized, measured, presented and disclosed in the financsl
statements The Trust has evaluated 1ax positions taken o expected to be taken in the course of prepaning the Trust's 13 returns to
determine whether the tax positions are more ikely than not to be sustained by the applicable tax authonty. Based on this analysis of
all sigrificant ta jurisdictions and open tax years subject to examination, dl matenal tax postions were deemed to meet a more likely
than not threshald Therefore, no addivonal tax expense, induding any nterest or penalties, was recorded for the year ended
Decernber 30, 2024 To the extent the Trust is required 1o record interast and penalties, they would be included in interest axpense
and other expenses, respectively, in the statement of operations

Generally, the tax authonties in the junsdictions in which the Trust conducts its business can initiate examinations of tax returns or
security transactions within vanous ime penods from the date the returns are filed or the date the secunity transactions oceurred. As
a result, certain tax returns or security transactions are still subject to examination

Foreign Currency Translation

Thie functional currency of the Trust is the LS. Dollar. Assets and liabilites denominated in 3 currency other than the U5 Dollar ane
translated into U35, Dollars at the mid-market rate of exchange at reporting date 25 reported by an independent pricing serace
Purchases and sales of investments and income and expenses denominated in currendes other than U 5 Dollars are trandated at the
rates of exchange on the respective dates of such transactions. The resulting gains and losses from such translation are included in
redized and unrealized gains Josses) in the staternent of operations

Aecent Accounting Pronouncement

Imy June 3022, the FASE ssued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 202203, fair Vale Messurement (Topic 8200 Fair Value
Meastrement of Egury Secuties Subiect to Comtractusl $ale Restndtions The amendment danfies that contractual sale restrictions
shiould not be considerad when measuning the equity security’s far value and profubits an entity from recogrizing a contractual sde
reswmiction a5 a separate unit of account. The amendments in the ASU are effective for the Trust beginning after December 15, 2024

Thie Trust has assessed that the newly effective accounting standard has no material impact on the Trust's financid statements and
related declosures

3_Fees
Management Fee

As defined in the Confidential Offering Memorandum, the Investment Manager earns a management fee, payable monthly in arrears.
The management fee is accrued as of each caendar day, caeulated at arate of 1.10% per anrwm of the Trust's net asset value, prioe
to any redempticns and performance fees. Units held by the Investment Manager's affiliates do not bear any management fees

Performance Fee

A defined in the Confidenuial Offering Memarandum, the Investment Manager eams a monthly perform ance fee equal 10 15% of
the new profit in respect of YEN Class Units, YEN Class {Hedged) Units and USD Class Units. The performanice fee is accrued on each
business day and is payable as of the last business day of each calendar month and upon any intra-month redemption or transfer of
Urits. The performance fee will be caloulated and reported i the cumrency in which the applicable dlass of Units 15 denominated, With
respect to the YBY Class Units and the YEN Class (Hedged) Urits, each performance fee will be caculated without taking into account
any effect on the net aset value of such Units due to fluctuations in the edxchange rate with respect to the Trust's US. Dellar-
denominated assets during the period in respect of which such performance fee is being calculated, Addmonally, with respect 1o the
¥EM Class {Hedged) Units, the performance fee will be calodated wiathowt taking into account any expenses, profits of losses relating
toany currency hedge Units held by the Investment Manager's affiliates will not bear any performance fees

4 Related Parties

UES Investment Bank, an affiliate of the Investment Manager, is one of the Trust's executing and prime brokers. The Trust did not
inour commissions and other charges on investment transactions with UBS Investment Bank for the year ended December 30, 2024

Certain brokerage arrangements provide that the Investment Manager and its affiliates receive soft dollar credits refated to brokerage
commissions paid by the Trust and cther affiliated funds. Such credits can be used by the Investment Manager for research and related
senvices that would then be paid for, of provided By, the brokers, The researdy senvices obtaned by the lnvestment Manager thraugh
the use of soft dollar aredits can be for the benefit of the Trust or other funds managed by the Investment Manager,

Due 1o Investment Manager represents payable for management and performance fess
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5 Risk Managemant

The Trust i3 subject to market risk associated with changes in the value of its investments and demvative financial instruments, as well
as credit nisk from the loss of apprecation of a counterparty fals to perform. The Investment Manager takes an active role in managing
and moratoring the Trust's market and cradit nsks and has established formal control pracedures, which are reviéwied on an ongoeng
bazs

The Imestment Manager has appointed an Investment Risk Committes comprised of serior personne from different disciplings
throughout the Imvestment Manager and its affiliates. The Investment Risk Committee meetsreqularly and reviews the Trust's potental
exposures to market and credit risks based on andyses performed by sk Managers and Risk Control

Market Risk

The Irvestment Manage moniars the risk parameters and epected volatiling of individua positions and the Trust's aggreqate
portfolio, Additionally, the Investment Manager seeks to control portfolio nsks through selective and dynamic sizing of positions based
on a regula evaluation of each investment’s risk and reward charactenistics. Reqular mark-to-market partfolio monitaring helps the
Investment Manager monitor the mvestments. The Investment Manager has also developed and uses proprietary statistical models to
identify and hedge systemic porfiolio risk, as well as individual pesition specific risk. While the Investrment Manager generally seeks 1o
hedge certain portfolio risks in an effort to increase the proportion of the Trust’s return attributable 1o perceived high value-added
risk exposures, the Investment Manager does not attempt to hedge all market or other risks inherent in the Trust's positions

Sequrities sold, not yet purchased, represent obligations of the Trust to deliver specified financial mstruments at contracted prices,
thereby creating commitments to purchase the financial instruments in the market at prevaling prices. Consequently, the Trust's
ultim ate obligation to satsfy the sale of secunties sold, nat yet purchased, may exceed the amaount recogrized n the statement of
assets and hiabilimes

Risks associated with epidemic and pandemic disesses, including, without limitation, travel restnctions, closed international borders,
quarantines, disruptions to sepply chains and lower consumer demand; a rise in protectionist trade policies; slowing global economic
growth; the sk of trade disputes and the poassibility of changes to some international trade agreements has impacted the invesiments
held by the Trust during the year and could continue to affect the economies of many nations, in ways that cannot be foreseen at
the present ume, and may adversely impact the markets in which the Trust invests

Credit Risk

All of the Trust's positions, including cash, due from brokers and denvative assets are held with its brokers, counterparties and other
financal mstitutions. In the event these parties are mable to fulfll their obligatons, the Trust would be subpect to aedit nsk. As a
result of the Trust's trading relationship with these firms, the Trust could have a significant concentration of credit nisk with a certan
broker(s) To the extent the Trust invests in derivatives, synthetic instrum ents (contracts for differences) or it effects OTC wansactions,
the Trust may take on credit risk with regard to paries with whom it wades and may also bear the nsk of setdement default. In an
effort to minimize this risk, the Investment Manager employs 2 margin monitening and management protocol on a daily basis 1
maonitor exposure levels. The Investment Manager attempts to diversify the credit risk associated with its trading activities by trading
with multiple entities and allocating transaction volume 1o counterparties with highes credit ratings, but it cannot guarantes its efforis
will be successful. In additian, the Investrrent Manager atternpts to remain active across multiple counterparties where possible in
arder to mantan flaabdity. The god of the Investm ent Manager 15 to balance operating, counterparty credit, counterparty settlement
and fimancial risks. Additionally, refer 1o Mote & for further discusson on the use of master netting asrangements to help mitgate
counterparty credit risk

Aside from daily monmonng of such relationships, these relationships are governed by vanows contracs. Generally, these contracts
are standard industry agreements such as international Swaps and Dervatives Associaton 1504) agreements for OTC contracts. These
agrearments set forth each party's basic rights, responsibilities and duties. These sgresments also contain information regarding
financial terms and conditions, as well as termination and events of default provisions. The Trust's rading strategies are dependent
upon the exstence of these agreements. The Trust's counterparties wually have multiple speafied events under which they can
termingte individual transactions or the entire agreement. These events are most commondy related 1o declings in assets under
management or performance below certain thresholds during a specified penod. Should a trigger event occur, counterparties have
the right 1o terminate indimdud transactions or entire agreements, which could severely impact the Trust's portfolia. The Trust s not
aware of any “trigaer events” accurnng duning the year ended Decerber 30, 2024 Certan swap agrearm ents contain provisons that
require the Trust 1o either post additiond collateral or inm ediately setde any cutstanding lisbility balances upon the occurrence of
specific cradit risk related events

Thie Trust invests in convertible bonds, corporate bonds and government bonds, Until such investments are sold or mature, the Trust
is edpased 1o credit risk related to whether the issuer will meet its obligation when the securities come due

Currency Risk
The Trust may invest a portion of its assets in non-UL S oerrencies, or in instruments denominated in non-U5 curencies, the prices

of which are determined with reference to currencies other than the U5 Dolfar. The Trust, howewver, values its securities and other
assets in U5 Dollars. The Trust generally seeks to hedge dl or any portion of its foreign currency exposure. To the extent the Trust's
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imvestments are not hedged, the value of the Trust's assets will fluctuate with U 5. Dollar exchange rates a5 well as the price changes
of the Trust"s investments in the vanous local markets and currencies,

6. Derivatve Conftracts

Ir thee normal course of busiress, the Trast enters into demvatives for trading purposes. Dervatives are either exchange-traded or OTC
contracts. Exchange-traded denvatives are standand confracts waded on a regulated exchange OTC contracts are pavate coniracts
negotiated with counterparties. The primary differences in risks assooated with OTC confracts and exchange-traded contracts are
credit and hquidity msks . For exchange-traded contracts, credit nsk 1s bmited due to the role of the exchange or clearng corporation
The Trust's maamum risk of loss from counterparty credit nsk on OTC contracts is limited to the unrealzed gain amourt on any open
contracts, net of any collateral received or collateral paid, plus any unsettled rade amounts. For the year ended December 30, 2024,
derivatives include forward currency contracts, options, wasrants and swaps. Detalls of these derivatives are provided below.

Forward Contracts

The Trust 15 subject 1o foregn currency eschange nsk in the normal course of pursuing its investment obgectives. The Trust may use
OTC forward contracts to gain exposure 1o or hedge aganst changes in the value of its foreign cumrencies or to hedge against foresgn
currency fluctuations betwesn the functional currenicy of the Trust and the denomination of the Trusts Yen Class (Hedged) Units. 4
forward contract is a cath market transaction in which two parties agree to the purchase or sale of a currency at & specified price on
a specified date in the future, Upon entenng inte such contracts, the Trust bears the risk of exchange rates moving unexpectedly, in
which case, the Trust may not achieve the anticipated benafits of the forward contract 2nd may redize 2 loss. Forwand contracts are
traded inunregulated markets and are typicaly hquidated by settling cash

Options and Warrants

Thiz Truest i% subject 10 aquity prce risk, interest rate nsk and foregn currency exchange risk in the normal course of pursuing s
investment objectives. The Trust may use exchange-traded or OTC options or warrants to gain exposure toor hedge against changes
im the value of its equities, interest rates o foreign curremcies. Options, which include warrants, are contracts that grant the holder,
for a premium payment, either the night to purchase or sell a financial instrument at a spacthed price within a spechied time or ona
specified date from or to the wnter of the option. Cptions written by the Trust do not give rise to counterparty credit nisk, as they
oblgate the Trust and not its counterparty ta perform . Options written by the Trust are subject to off-balance-sheet risk, a5 the Trust's
satsfaction of the obligations may excesd the amount recognized in the statement of assets and lisbilities. Options and warrants are
typically liquidated by selling, exerasng or through expiration.

IWaps

The Trust 15 subject to aquity pnce nsk i the normal course of pursuing s investment objectives, In certain instances, the Trust may
enter into swap contracts 10 obtain equity price exposure or 10 help hedge against equity price risk. Swaps, which inclede contracts
for differences, are agreements between Two parties 1o exchange cash flows based on an agreed amount of underlying equity shares
wwaps @e traded in unregulated markets and are either liguidated or held to maturity. The unrealized gain or loss, rather than the
contract or notional amounts, reprasents the approximate future cash flows, The Trust may elect 10 recenve or pay equity returns
based on the agresd number of underbang shares versus paying or recerving afinanang amount. Swaps are marked to market based
on the move of the underlying equity secunty and the acerued financng amount, and the change, if any, is recorded as et change
in urrealized appreciationddepreciation on denvative contracts and foreign currency in the statement of operations, The risks of swaps
indudi changes in market conditions affecting the value of the contract or the cash flows and the possible inability of the counterparty
1o fulfill its obligations under the agreerment.

The following table sets forth the Trust's dervative contracts beld at December 30, 2024, by primary risk exposure, location in the
statement of assets and labilities and quarterly average trading levels for the year then ended. The values in the tables below exclude
raming by counterparty and the effects of cash receved or posted & collateral pursuant 1o derivative contracts, and therefore, ane
not representative of the Trust's net aposure

Dariaity Ay
ey Quactedy Quarary
o i B Aymrege v Doriverihoss. vermge Aveonge
Pty Rk B Fair Value Fatiewal Eormmen® Fair Vahs A Comtracy”
boulty prae i T 3D 3 455208 mTEn  § BT § 0.TEIN o _
Fomign exchange AL AT - ¥ - =
et demewtive conitiact i 777953 £ 7181

T —
"Ho cpen derpative contrecs at December 30, 2024, Tameunts reflect average notional cutstanding for forward currency contracts and swaps. Jamounts reflect sverage
cortrict shice equivalens custandng for options snd warrants.

Thie following table sets forth the Trust's gains and losses related 1o dervative activities by primary nsk exposure and location in the
statement of operations for the year ended December 30, 2024, These gains and fosses should be considered in the context that

denvative contracts may have been executed to economicaly hedge securmies and accordingly, certain gains or losses on denvative
contracts may offset certain gains o losses attributable 10 secunties
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Th felowing table presents the far vaue of dervative contracts by maor praduct Type on a gross basis. Gross far vaues exclude the
effects of both caunterparty netting and collateral, and therefore are not representative of the Trust's exposure. The following table
also presents the amounts that have been offsetin the statement of assets and liabilities due to counterparty neting, as well as cash
and secunties collateral posted and receved under enforceable credit support agreements reflected up 1o the value of derivatives

e Amouns: Flanlal
G ‘of Dartartivas It menty
Aty oo 1 Rt Oftsan
Groes ot in the In tha = tha
Aoty of inpte—sat of Stk magerl. Strtmenant of Calstasml
Db Ao mad ol Awmals wnd Aty ped (L=
lcognied skt Uiabiitios Usbir Fackgaed* Hat Aamout
Larbaifva usets
Jronward curmnoy soaescts. ] FEL ) = | 33554 3 = ] - ] 33554
Jmharvge ke ophoad el wearmnt. - - o TR - TROER
CraHrcaihee opF DG ored B - - 1,64 = " 1640
Sontrgty for deégm s AT L] ¥ = = i ¥H
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Dartvaw L abilties
Jimhange taclod optong sed vermeds i =1 =T [T [ m =
Conlracts bor ditemaas [ T — - P -
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Cotawal pledged s refected up vo the far value of the 1mwdrrrmhmkﬁuh-y counterparty. Collaterd i posted based on nobonsl expoture of demviite conTacs
et of the fair value of dervative assets. At December 30, 2024, the total cash collateral pledaed for dervative contracs is $7,011.536, which & induded in due From
backers, netby counterparty in the s@tem ent of asets and habilides

7. Financal Guarantees

The Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of mdemnifications. The Trust's mamum exposure under these amangements
is not known, However, the Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss 1o be
remote

8. Units

Thie Trust issues its units of benefiaal interest (Unitsh in three (3) separate dasses WD Class Units, YEN Class Units and YEN Class
(Hedged) Urats, The liabilbties of the Trust ansing i redation to any class of Units waill be met from undnaded assets. The Trustes will
attribute all gains and losses on any currency hedge to the YEN Class (Hedged) Units and may also attribute other assets and liabilities
of the Trust 1o one or more particulsr classes of Units

The Units ame offered in Japan & a public offering under Article 2, Paragraph 3, lterm 1 of the Financial Instrements and Bochange
Law

Urnits are issued monthly & of the first business day of a callendar month and at such other times as the Trustee may from time to
time determine, YEM Class Units and YVEM Class (Hedged) Units are initially offered at a purchase price of JFY10,000 per Unit and USD
Class Units are initially offered at & purchase price af $100 per Unit. After the initial issuance of Units, Units may continue 1o be
offered at the prevailing net asset value per Unit. The Trust is currently offering a single series of YEN Class Units, YEN Class {Hedged)
Units and USD Class Units; however, the Investment Manages, may determine to issue additional semes of YEN Class Units, YEN Clas
(Hedged) Units and US0 Class Units in the future, The minimum nitial subscription size for Units in the Trost will be () 010,000,000
lor its equivalent in U5 Dollars), with respect to offers to subscnbe for a specfic amount of IPY {or U S, Dollars, as apphcable), or (1)
1,000 Uruts, with respect to offers 1o subscnbe for a speafic number of Unats

The Trust also offers a dass of Units (USD Class {Management) Units) denominated in U5 Dollars 1o an affiliate of the Investm ent
Manager. Such Units will not bear management fees or performance fees. 11 is anticipated that the Units issued to the Inestment
Manager’s affiliate will be redeemed, on an appromately dollar-for-dofar basis, & additional Units are issued after the Trust
commences its trading and imvestment opsrations. Such affihate, may, however, be required by act to reduce s imvestment in the
Trust 1o not mare than 3% of the value of the Trust’s cutstanding Units as of the first anniversary of the establshment of the Trust
An December 30, 2024, there were no USD Class (Managem ent) Units outstanding

Generally, Unitholders will have the nght 10 request redemption of any of all Units as of the first business day of a calendar month,
by providing five (5) business days prios written notice 1o the Administrator

Audited finandal staternents a5 of and for the year ended Decernber 20, 2024 Page 18

133/252



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Unit transactions for the year ended December 30, 2024, were 3 follows

Units. Uitz
Culstanding &t Oetistanding at
December 19, Linits Uniz Decarmber 30,
Fid] s Ll 024
YEN s 1,154 00 3 (2R TETY 05 Mo
TVEN Clats (Hedge 0413 = {151 Sy S8 BT
LS e 555589 e [2 615} 4TE 674

9. Financial Highlights

Thi following represents the per unit information, total return-and ratics 1o average net msets for the year ended December 30,
2024

YEN Clas
YEM Claas {Hedged) USE Class

Par urit operating perdfarmance
Beanimurs net et vilue JFY 15,551 FY (L] ] 11879
Irsiree fraim opa ations

et irvestnent income 145 a7 107

Blet gan (los) on irmestrnents in seorites, devative contracts and foragn aurrendy 2072 =08) 119
Tetal from operators & 217 @iy 337
Ending ret souwt valus IBY 17,768 Y 10,523 i 122 06
Tatal retun
Total return bifore per foam ance fee 14.79 % {41 % I3 %
Performance fee 053] {046 1048}
Total retuen after parlormance fee 16 % 187} % 175 %
Ratios to sranage net ssels
Experses other than parformance fee 455 % 4% % 455 %
Forfoemance foe [LE] 047 047
Total experses S04 % S0 % S0 %
et investrrent income’ DE6 % 0% % 083 %

"Caloulation mdudes the effect of performance fee

The financid Feghlights are calculated for each class taken & a whole. An indnadual Unitholder’s return and ratios may wary from
these returns and ratios based on the timing of capital transactons,

10. Subsequent Events
The Inwestment Manager has evaluated the possibility of subsequent events easting i the Trust's finanaal statements through March

27, 2025, the date the financial statements were available 1o be ssued, and has concluded that there are no recognized or non-
recognized subsequent events for financial statement adjustment or disclosure
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Condensed Schedule of Investments
(stated in United States Dollars)
Decern ber 20, 2024

ey TR de.r"
Dascripticn S Falr alue Miet Asnets
I s In securithes
Camiran equities
Aufrissriecis
Commuricton Senices § 16,407,774 329 %
o Dicralionan 1,600,021 OB
Cofmumes Slapkes
Kelogy Company 208558 16,858 K50 852
Olher T3 013
Toldl Corsurner Slaphs 17,206,185 .70
Energy
Hess Coeporation 184,082 24,061 358 1216
Charnpscn X Corporation 4273558 11,01 0 5.7
Tolal Eneigy 5471 244 17,93
Financisl
Ditscower Financial Sersioes, b 4585 1,137,310 563
Clher 9,496 750 484
TFolal Finand s 20636960 1943
Heaith Care 5,183 448 242
Indfut riaks 5673133 287
Infoemation Technodogy
HishiCorp, Ind Ere L 12,588 515 656
Jurigsr Beetweoaks, Inc 453.928 §6.554.211 857
Sidctehdd Inc 109519 1, TRa 66 .
Cuher 13,117 854 & 64
Fotdl Inforrnation Techrokogy 5,81 5945 L]
Material 13,832 Qa6 643
Fea) Extate 356,981 Q.20
Teal S it fooest § 0 T 025 9T 1 28 2 TR B0
[
Fnformation Technodogy (cos §4,289.541) 4215455 213
Eurcger
Coamnru ricalion Senace 4,403 010 223
Lo Shaphkes 524 043
Haaith Care B4TATS 043
Financiss 3,650,188 1B
Inaduzsh ks 33681322 170
Bt 7506410 4.0
Total Bwrope (cosl §15.822 821} FANECT 10,63
Total o equities (oost 51 F142.333) 195,582 366 i
Comartible bonds
AIv s
Industrials foost $IEE534) 263 900 013
Total conwnibie bonds [com $666,5 34) 263 500 013
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)
(stated in United States Dollars)
Decern ber 20, 2024

Description Shares Fule Vil hist Assets
I s In securithes (contimued)
Corporate bonds
AT s
Financials (cos $42 2 5000 t 438361 027 %%
Eurcps
Fingnicial 952158 a5
LAk 1, 00805 Q.85
Totsl Eurcpss (oomt §2 723 370} 2,053 00d 154
Todal corporate bonds (oost, §3,145, 8700 3.080 365 156
Hon-srchange-traded equities
LT TR
Cormunee Discrelianan 1587028 QR
Enetrgy BG5S Quled
It sl 35mM S
ToAa Amenicas fiogt $6.5 20,858 1,630,184 083
et
Financish (romt $57 5l 3RS .03
Tl neonese hanged raded equites (oo §7 a3 1, 654573 [3-T1
o ]

..” I !ﬁl!ﬂ'g" B @W 0N AD W

Securties 5old, not et pur nased

Camman equths
AT
Cowrsuren Discredisnarny i 1 Ga5 433 (5h W
Energy
iC s G pontirtionn 1 B0 i, S5 il 1363
Schhamberger MV ETERLE] 11,876 334 .00
Other 1,667 53 OB
Tolal Ensngy 40,450,011 20.44
Finandil
Capital One Finandial Copodation 5231 R Ex] 507
Indusst rials 3335618 168
Infdimation Tadhnclaqy & 730125 I3
Total Amesicrs [proceeds §63,721,688) 50,1 75 25T 3041
Eurcgs
Commimu ricalion Senaces 3BM0E12 .55
Corsumee Slaghe B2 B5T 042
Finanial 3,605 500 B
Industrials 3,331 143 168
Malerias 3.561.106 2,00
Tolal Eurcge [peoceeds 317 001 185 15621 307 750
Tl cmren agquilks JEOTIZEN] 75, G B FB31
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)

(stated in United States Dollars)
Decern ber 20, 2024

S T Parcont of
Decrts Falr Value NetAsrs
Securfthes sold, not yel puschased frontinued)
Corporate bonds
Arereas
Financials | procesds §335.051) [ 345911 018 %
Todal goaporabe bonds (geocesds §335051) 245,911 018
EBuchange-traded funds
A s
Enéngy T a5 OG0
Iy 1. 3095607 ALY
Tod 3l i huan eI o fureds I}ﬂ'mﬂsi&”h‘iﬂ 177 548 119
Govenmant bands
AN
U % Govermement {peoceeds 660,000 53 AR2 033
Tolal gover nmenil bonds (peocesds $650 G0 53 282 033
b w 063 W
Dl hotit hoi c0it]BCtS.
Formand conbracts
Forvesind dumency conliacts i 3554 o
Ciptians and warrmnts
Exchange- rsded optsons and wamants —bang
AT RS
Cosriuti Discrétionsn [FiTy [
Cofrsumae Slake 47 .00
Finsneish SO [UVE
Haith Cang 1,152 .00
Inaisi s 653 .00
infaernataon Tedhmsogy 18534 O.ird
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Condensed Schedule of Investments {continued)
(stated in United States Dollars)
Decern ber 20, 2024
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AM=aCEE
Coonire pichlion Senace [procesds §15 B55) b 653 O B
Tkl i han ge-trded and vearmsnts = shat 313 &5 6% .00

Cortits for diffimences = kg

AT
Real Exlate (.37 0.
Eurcpe:
(CoreLs e Descrabaomany (83 T L]
T !JE 14 Sy LK ]
Enesgy (23,258 )
Firasaiaki 18983 Q.01
Eesifth S 25 EE0 L]
Industiak 2,458 (0=
il rrican To:w 1260 .00
Mztak G0 558 Luiris]
Ui (4,573) (.0
Todal Eurcpe (a3, 1) (0.23)
Tl contracts fos differences = long (235 455) (9.23)
Contracts for diffeeences — short
AneTitE
Indey 155 5.5 Q.08
Falriak 413 442 g.21
Todal Amercas G0 5 Q19
Eunops:
(it raet Do retsonry 11 QB L]
Eneigy 21 002 L]
Farardlals 1,724 0.0
Hasaifth Cane Sy 00D
Toial Eurcpe 34300 L
Tolal sontracts fov dif ferences - sharl EDI_@,BM o031

Derivite cortr st are reflected greds Before netting by counterparty in sootedance with A5C 815, Dersathes snd Medging
Se¢ A0COMpanying notes

Audited finandal staternents a5 of and for the year ended Decernber 20, 2024 Fage 7

138/252



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 29
2023 12 29
25,908,896 3,693,831
198,259,272 193,619,690 27,604,359
480,861 68,556
152,944,747 21,805,333
904,337 128,931
177,813 25,351
140,593 20,044
374,176,937 53,346,406
102,873,124 104,182,393 14,853,284
258,833 36,902
16,388,483 2,336,506
5,169,815 737,061
592,919 84,532
57,355 8,177
433,986 61,873
127,083,784 18,118,335
247,093,153 35,228,071
1,154,609.00 15,551
700,413.00 10,834
555,589.00 118.79 16,936

139/252



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 29
7,234,922 1,031,483
(9,043,445) (1,289,324)
10,454,989 1,490,568
(2,063,282) (294,162)
6,583,184 938,565
5,606,454 799,312
816,786 5,468,767 779,682
11,075,221 1,578,994
2,464,601 351,378
1,328,186 189,359
3,169,886 451,931
1,655,229 235,986
1,440,181 205,327
870,065 124,045
10,928,148 1,558,026
147,073 20,968

6,730,257 959,533
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2023 12 29

141/252

147,073 20,968
7,234,922 1,031,483
(9,043,445) (1,289,324)
10,454,989 1,490,568
(2,063,282) (294,162)
6,730,257 959,533
1,395,997 199,027

459,046 65,446
(46,410, 258) (6,616,710)
(18,711,407) (2,667,685)
(27,681,949) (3,946,615)

(90,948,571)

(12,966,538)

(84,218,314)
331,311,467

(12,007,005)
47,235,076

247,093,153

35,228,071
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2023 12 29
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6,730,257

(800,318,500)
904,644,614
(119,846,264)

959,533

(114,101,409)
128,975,183
(17,086,482)

220,766,727 31,474,712
(2,632,164) (375, 268)
(11,502,717) (1,639,942)
1,804,449 257,260
(73,443,591)  (10,470,853)

(575,253) (82,014)
29,113 4,151
68,424 9,755

258,833 36,902
(11,228,937) (1,600,910)
291,988 41,629
(15,780) (2,250)
(212,540) (30,302)
114,818,659 16,369,696
1,855,043 264,473

(92,394,216)

(13,172,643)

(90,539,173)

(12,908,170)

24,279,486 3,461,526
1,629,410 232,305
25,908,896 3,693,831
2,493,125 355,445



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 29

2019 12

UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS
MUFG
AFS

MUFG

MUFG

ASC 946

GAAP
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ASC 820
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TRPA

TRPA

TRPA
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2023 12 29
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177,915,842

177,915,842

884,947 884,947

9,863,204 9,863,204

146,048 146,048
1,336,017 1,336,017
3,473,480 152 3,473,632

179,397,907 14,221,631 152 193,619,690
396,476 396,476

178,931 178,931

575,407 575,407

179,397,907 14,797,038 152 194,195,097
99,614,328 99,614,328
2,389,177 2,389,177

2,178,888 2,178,888
101,793,216 2,389,177 104,182,393
353,379 353,379

353,379 353,379

101,793,216 2,742,556 104,535,772

2023 12 31

25,026,376

MSILF
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2023 12 31
248,415 (1,652,595)
2,019,674
150,676,658 (14,735,888)
152,944,747 (16,388, 483)
2023 12 29
ASC 740
2023 12

29
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2023 12 29

110,854

UBS
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ASU 2022-03 820
ASU 2024 12 15
1.10
15
2023 12 29 UBS
2023 12 29
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CFD

ISDA

2023 12 29
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CFD

2023 12 29

146,048 178,931 20,871,278 1,481,490 353,379 11,360,856 780
396,476 62,901,528

146,048 575,407 353,379

2023 12 29

2023 12 29

(15,874) 1,096,744 296,275 (587,533)
(10,140, 189) (1,475,749)

(15,874) (9,043,445) 296,275 (2,063,282)
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396,476 396,476 396,476
178,931 (94,546) 84,385 84,385
146,048 146,048
575,407 (94,546) 480,861 146,048 626,909
(353,379) 94,546 (258,833) 258,833
(353,379) 94,546 (258,833) 258,833
2023 12 29
2,019,674
100
1,000
1,000
2023 12 31
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2023 12 29
2022 12 30 2023 12 29
1,580,261.00 13,270.00 (438,922.00)  1,154,609.00
949,698.00 (249, 285.00) 700,413.00
794,987.00 4,090.00 (243,488.00) 555,589.00
2023 12 29
13,617 10,796 111.95
8 7 0.04
1,926 31 6.80
1,934 38 6.84
15,551 10,834 118.79
14.90 1.00 6.80
(0.70) (0.65) (0.69)
14.20 0.35 6.11
3.20 3.21 3.21
0.58 0.56 0.59
3.78 3.77 3.80

0.05 0.07 0.03
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2024 28
UBS
UBS
UBS

UBS

UBS
UBS AM UBS AG UBS
UBS
UBS AM

UBS AM
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(Stabed o United Stabes Dok
December 29, 2023
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Statement of Operations
(Stated n United States Dollars)
Year Enced December 29, 2023
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
{Stated in United States Dollsrs)
Year Enced December 29, 2023
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity
Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
{Stated n United Stabes olkrs)
Year Enced December 29, 2023
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Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity

Fund

Motes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 20, 2023

1. Organization

Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund {the
Trusth & an exempted unit trust organized in the Cayman Idands
and regetered under the Cayman kslands Trusts Aot and
commenced operations on December 6, 2079 The Trust is
registered under the Cayman lslends Mutusl Funds Act. The
Trust's imestment objective & to realie consstently high riek-
adpusted appreciation in the value of &5 assets. The Trust sesks to
sehise its investrment objective pranarly through investments in
the securities of entities involed N announced mergers,
acguisitions or contests for cortrol including by shorting such
securities), however, the Trust also may make investments in
entities mvolved in other types of restrucluring of corporate
events when, in the manager's opinion, attractive opportunities
EHiEt

The Trust's advser 5 UBS O'Connor LLC {the Investment
Managerj, a Delsware Nmited labikty company, which &
registered with the U5, Securities and Exchange Commision as
on investment adviser. The Investment Manager may USe Certain
personnel of one or more of its affliates or engage one of mMode
of its affiliates as sub-advisers to provide investment advice for
certain assets of the Trust The Investment Manager & o wholly-
owmed subsidiary of UBS Asset Management {Americas) Inc. UBS
Asset Managerent (Americash inc. and any affilated sib-advisers
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of UBS AG (UBS} and are part of
UBS Assat Maragement, which providas various operational and
managerial support senvices to the Investment Manager,

The Trust's sdministrator is MUFG ARernatie Fund Services
{Ireland} Liemited {the Admmistrator. The Adrimstrator provides
certain | administrative  services to  the Trust, including
maintenance of the Trust's books and records, and serves as
registrar for the Trust's units. AFS Controlled Subsidiary 3 Ltd,
{the Trustee) & a company duly incorporsted and validly exsting
in the Cayman lskends and & regBtered with the Cayman Elands
Monetary Authority as a “controlled subsidiary” fwithin the
meanmg of the Banks and Trust Companies At (As Revised) of
the Cayman Elands) of MUFG Alernative Fund Services {Cayman
Limited, which & a duly mcorporated, wlidly existing company
licznsed to underteke trust business pursuant ko the provisions of
the Banks and Trust Companies Act.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Investment Manager has evaluated the structure, objectives
and activities of the Trust and determined that & meets the
characteristes of an investment company. As such, these
financial statements have applied the guidance set forth in
Accounting  Standards  Codification  (ASC) 946, Finanaal
Services—Investment Companies. The following i a summary of
significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing
the financial satements,

Auahilnel finonciol sotemnents oy of o For Ue e snded Decernbwe 29, 2023,

Use of Estimates

The financal statements have been prepared in accordance with
US. generally accepled accounting principles (GAAFL The
preparation of these financel statements reguires management
o make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
rgported in the fingncial satements and accompanmying notes.
Actual results coudd differ from swoh estimates.

Investmiont Transactions

Investment transactions, which inclide securities sold, not yet
purchased, are accounted for on o trade-date basis. Dividends ane
recognized on the ex-dividend date, and mterest & accrued as
earned or ncurred. Realized gais and fosses on securiies
transactions are recorded on a fiest-in, first-out cost basks.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC B20, Fair Value Measurement, clarifies the definition of far
velue for financial reporting. esteblshes o fromework wed to
measure Tair value and enhances disclosure requirements Tor far
value measurements. The Investment Manager has categorized
the Trust's financizl instruments, based on the priorty of the
valustion technigque, o a three-level fair vablee hierarchy, The
valuztion herarchy is based upon the obeervability of the inputs
to the valuation of the financial assel o hability as of the
measurement date. Afinancalinstrumant’s categorization within
the valuation hiererchy & based on the lowest leved of mput that
& significant to the fair value measurement.

The threse levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valustion methodology are quoted prices
funadjusted) for identical assets or liabiites m active markets.

Level 2 = lnputs to the valuation methodokgy nclude guoted
jprices for samalar assets and Babilties in actiee markets, and inputs
that are observable for the asset or Eabidity, either directly or
incirecthy.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable
and significant to the fak vake measurement. This includes
situstions where there is ittle, if any, market actraty for the asset
o linbility,

Fair value & the price that would be recened in the sale of an
558t of poid to transfer o liabiy in an orderly transaction
bebween market participants ab the measurement date, Where
available, fair value i5 based on observable merket prices or
parameters or derived from such prices or parameters using
market standard modeks. These valuation models imolve some
leved of estimation and judgment, the degree of which &
dependent on the price tramsparency for the instruments or
maket and the sstrument complestty. Assets and hiabilties

Foya 10
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recorded at far valee are categorized for disclosure purposes
based on the level of judgment assoceted with the inputs used
to measure ther value as described above.

The aweikbiity of obssrvable inputs can vary depending on the
financial asset or lebiity and & affected by a wide variety of
factoes, including, for example, the type of product, whether the
product is new, whether the product is traged on an active
exchange or in the secondary market and the cument market
conditions. To the extent that the wluation 15 based on models
oF inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market,
the determimation of far vabie requies more judgment
Accordingly, the degree of judgment exerased by Uhe Investment
Manager in determining fair value & least for essels and [Bhilkies
clagsified as Level 1 and greatest for assets and liabdites chesified
o5 Level 3. In certain cases, inputs used to measure Tair value may
fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

The valuation process is governed by the investment Manager's
Valuntion Policy and Procedures {the Valuation Policyk, which has
been approved by the Trustee. The Valustion Policy governs the
valuation of all nvedments and defines the valuation principles
and pricng conventions for each investment type as described
beloey. In addition, the Valuation Policy establishes o veluation
cammittes (the Valuation Committes). The Valuation Committes
membership includes represertation from the vestment
Manager's Legal, Compliance, Portfolio Accounting, Valuation
and Market Rek Control tearms, The Waluatin Committes &
specificalty responsible for the mplementation of the Valuaton
Policy. The Valugtion Committee will escalate issues to the
Trustee 2= desmed necessary. The Valation Committee ako
reviews and approves the valuation metbodobgy implemented
for any new imestment types, a5 vwell a5 for imaestments in prvote
securities of securities where the valuation is driven by
unpbservable inputs. The vobing members of the Valuation
Committes are non-mvestment team personnel, chaired by head
of the asset managers global valuation team, although the
Valuption Cormmittes may obtain input from investment team
peersonnel in reaching their concusions, The Portfolio Accounting
team of the Investment Manager holds @ monthly valuation
meeting sttended by representatives of the Trust's Administrator
to discuss the valustion process and any waluations that
significantly diverge from the independent sources. if these items
connol be resolved, they ore escalated to the Valuation
Commities a5 appropriate.

The Investment Manager & responsible for the valuation of all
ossets and Bzhilities of the Trust. The Administrator 2lso perfonms
an independent review of all assets and habilities, as defined by
the Valuation Policy. Ary changes to the valuation methodology
are reviewsed by the Administrator and the Valuation Committee
Ay material changes are reviewed and approved by the Trustee.

In addition to the Vaksation Committee, the Investment Manager
has created a committee for transactions requiring pre-approgal
(TRPA  Committes}. This committee is comprsed  of
representatives from the logidtics teams of the vestment
Manager, including Postfolio Accounting, Tak, Valuatkon, Legal
Compliance, Market Risk Control and Information Technology.
Under the TRPA Committes’s remit a5 well as other sub working
groups is the approval of new instrument types prior to brading,
ond also an ennual evaluation of commant instrument types. An
instrurnent type made dosmant would need re-appeoval through
the TRPA Committee prioc to trading, The TRPA Committes
evaluates the relevant pricing models or pricing sources to be
used in determining the instrument’s Tair value and agrees on a
valuation methodology. The Portfolio Accounting team of the
Investrment Manager olso reviewes daily profit and loss reparting

Auahilnel finonciol sotemnents oy of o For Ue e snded Decernbwe 29, 2023,
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and amalyzes matenal changes to assist in evaliating the
repsonableness of imvestment valuations. In addition, reviews of
stale pricing ond back-testing of prices for certain less Bguid
investments are performed, and a summary of these resuls is
rovided to the Vakuation CommRtes on a quartery besis for
TEVIEW,

The following & a description of the valuation methodologies
used for nstruments measured at Tar value, including the general
dassification of such instuments pursuant to the valuation
hierarchy as described shove. The waluation methodologies
disclosed below are general guidelines and the actual valiation
methodology could vary from instrument to instrament to
ovide the most appropriote fair volee megsurement. The net
change m unrealized apprecistionidepredstion  on  thess
nstruments is reflected in the statement of operations.

Exchange and Non-Exchange-Traded Instruments

Generally, the fair value of financial nstruments that are listed on
o securities exchange are detenmined by ther last sales price of
the official closing price on the date as of which the value is being
determined on the primary exchange on which such financil
instruments are trading, The far values for exchange-traded
COIMIMOoN equity securities e determingd inthis mannes, The fair
value of exchangedraded funds & determined by the official
composite of the closing prices. Exchange-traded options and
warrants represent standard derivatie contracts (derivativesh
traded on a regulated exchange. The fair valses for non-ULS.
exchange-traded options and wamants are determined by the
settement price 25 quoted on the exchange on which the
instrument 15 traded. The fair value of U35 exchange-draded
options and warrants & determined by the composite exchange
mid-price. Exchange-tracded common equity securithes, funds,
optons and warrans are genesally classified within Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy.

Securities traded outside of exchanges, and actively guoted by
trokers or dealers, are generally classified within Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy, but i they are rarely quoted or the guotes o
jpricing sources are not deemed to be representative of fair value,
other inputs and assumptions, such as analysis performed by the
Investment Manager, may be used in the valustion that may
result in the classification of the security within Leved 3 of the far
volue hiesordhy, Generally, fair value for non-exchange troded
instruments i@ based on the market approach, the income
appeoach or the assel-based approach. The Investrment Marager
may consider the cost of the security, acorued nterest and
dividends relsted to the investment, dscount rates, the fai valse
of samiler publicly raded securities, discounts for lack of control,
discounts for lack of marketabilly, developments smce the
acguiskion of the security and other factors redevant to the
valuation, Ako, the Investment Manager may recede
incependent valuations provided by a third-party valuation agent.

Fixed Income Nstruments

The fair value for fixed income instruments is determined by using
quoted market prices, broker or degler quotations, esternal
pricing providers or akemative pricing sources with reasonable
leveds of price transperency. The types of instruments valued
based on guoted market prices include bonds backed by
governments worldwide. These securities ae generally classifiad
within Level 1 or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The types of
instruments that trade in markets that are nok considered to be
a5 active as the markets described above, but are valued based
on guoted market prices, broker or dealer guotations, external
pricing providers or alematie prcing sources with reasonable
levedz of price transparency, incude comvertible bonds and
corporate bonds. Such instruments are generslly classified within
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Lewel 2 of the fair value hierarchy. If a feed income mstrument & rarely quoted or the quotes or pricing Sources are not desmed o be
representative of fair value, other mputs and assumptions, such 2s analysis performed by the Investment Manager, may be used in
the vakuation that may result in the clessification of the security within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Ower-the-Counter Derivatives

The fak volues for over-the-counter (3T} derivatives are generally detestnined using market standard quantitative pricing models
uging inputs based on obsenable market data o mputs comoborated by obsenable market data in addition 1o counterpar ty quotes.
The appropriate model 5 selected based upon the contractuel terms of and specific risks mherent in the instrument. Valuation modek
reguire a vanety of inputs, nckuding, but not limited W, the terms of the derivative, obsemvable market prices, Gme value of money,
credit spreads, yiekd curves and measures of volatility, For OTC derivatives that trade in liquid markets, such as certain swaps, model
inputs can generally be verified and obeerved, and model selection does not requine significant judgment by the Investment Manager.
These model valuations ane also validated by comparing such values to guotes provided by the counterparty to the transaction or an
independent party. The Trust trades OTC oplions, warrants and contracts for differences. As the significant inputs for these
instruments can generally be corroborated to market observable mputs, these nstruments are generally chssified within Level 2 of
the fair valuee hierarchy. Certain of these instruments may be classified within Level 3 of the far value hierarchy because they trade
infrequently and therefore have litle or no pricing transparency, o the lowest level of significant input to the valuation mocel may
not be readily observable.

Although the Trust's functional currency is the United States Dollars (U.S, Dollary, a portion of the Trust's Units are denominated in
Jopanese Yen (IPY). For the YEN Closs (Hedged) Umnits, the Trust enters into forward currency contracts with an affiliete of the
Adminstrator o minimize the fluctuations of the net asset vakies of the Units denominated in foreign curency. The Tar value for
ferward currency contracts is determined by obtaining independent mid-market quotes for various forwand currency settlements a
available and interpolating values faling betwesn those settlement dates to arrive ata vakie Tor the individual contract. These contracts
ore generally classified within Level 2 of the fai volue hierarchy.

Breakdown by Levels
The following table represents the far value of Tingnciol nstrumments shown by level ot December 29, 2023.
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For more detailed mformation about the financial metruments, refer to the condensed schedule of mvestments. The kvel 3 non-
exchange-traced egquities are comprised of securities in the finencials sector, The balances of contracts for differences in the table
above are reported on 2 gross basis by lavel before netting by counterparty. See Note 6 for further distussion on dermatie netting.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of monies held at an affilate of the Administrator. The Trust has not experienced any bosses in such accoumnts and does
not believe & is exposed to any significant credit nisk on such actounts. Cash equivakents include short-term, highly liquad nvestments
of sufficient credit quality that are readily cormvertible to knowan amounts of cash and have original matunties of three months or less.

Cash equivalents are held tomeet short-term liguidity requirements, rather then for imrestment purposes. As of December 31, 2023,
the Trust held shares in money market fund, categorized as cash equivalents, which comprised of Morgan Stankey Institutiona | Ligubdity
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Funds IMSILF} Prime Portfolio amounting to $25 026, 376. Monay
market funds are valued at $1 net asset value per share which
spprooimates Tair vakee, Cash equivalents are clessified within
Lewvel 1 of the far value hierarchy. As of December 37, 2023, Lhe
Trust held no restricted cash and cash equivalents.

Due frorn Brokers and Dus to Brokers

Due from brokers and due to brokers inclde accrued
commissions, net recenables and payables for unsettled trades,
net urrealized gams and losses on foreign currency balances,
cash, foreign currencies, margin balances and collateral held at
the brokers. The Trust has elected to not offsat far value amounts
recognized for cash collateral receivables and payables against
fair walue amounts recognized for net denvative positions
executed with the same counterparty under the same masber
netting arrangement Margin balances are collateralized by
certain of the Trust’s securities and cash balances held by the
brokers. In relation to margin debit balances, the Trust & charged
imterest at fluctuating rates based on a predefined ndex rate and
a predefmed spread. Certan investments in securRies are
Medged o the brokers on terms that permmit the brokers to sai or
repledgethe securities, subject to certain Bmitztions. Certain cash
and securities at the brokers that are rebted to sequrities solkd,
nok yet purchased, are partially restricted until the seourities are
purchased.

The !'nlm'mg table presents the breakout of the due from and
due to brokers in the statement of assets and labilties.

U Frovn Braian Pl w0 Ay
0 e W R k] EELIEE [1 &5 5%
Zan el 5l TOANST —_
i wmmion i v ] gl e FEALIL LA [EEEES]
Tersl 3 BT T & [EERGERE )
—
Taxation

There & currently no taxation mposed on Ncome or capital gains
by the government of the Cayman klznds. The only taxes payable
by the Trust are withholing tases apphicable o certain
imvestment  incoame  and capials gaing thwes . certain
Jjurisdictions. For the year ended December 29, 2023, no other
tai Wabality of expense has been recorded o the finanoasl
statements.

ASC 140, Income Taxes, defines how uncertain tax positions
should be recognized. measwred, presented and disclosed in the
financeal atements. The Trust has evaluated toe postions taken
o expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Trust's tax
refums to determine whether the tax positions are more likely
than mot to be sustamed by the spplicable tax authority. Based
on this anabysis of all significant L jurisdictions and open
years subject to examination, all material tay positions wese
desrmed to meet 3 more ikely than not threshold. Therefose, no
addmonal tax expense, including any iMerest o penalties, was
recorded for the yesr ended December 29, 2023, To the extent
the Trust is required to record interest and penalties, they would
be included in interest expense and other expenses, respectivedy,
in the statement of operations.,

Generally, the tax authorities in the juredictiors n which the
Trust conducts K5 business can miiate examinations of tax
retums of security transactions within varnous time periods from
the date the returns are filed o the date the security transasttions
occurred. As 3 result, certain tax returns or scurity transasctions
are still subject to exarmin ation
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Foreign Curmency Translation

The functional currency of the Trust is the U5 Doller. Assets and
liabalities denoemimnated in a currency other than the U5, Dollar
are transbted mto US. Dollers st the mid-market rate of
exchange as reported by an independent pricing service.
Purchases and sales of investments and income and expenses
denominzted in cumencies other than LS. Dollars are transizted
at the rates of exchange on the respoctiee dates of such
transactions, The resulting gams and lossas from such trarsktion
are incuded in reslized and unrealized gains (losses) in the
satement of operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In lune 2022, the FASE isued Accounting Standards Update
{ASL) 2022-03, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) Fair Value
Measurement of Equity Securities Subject to Contractusl Sale
Restrictions. The amerdment clarifies that contractual sale
restrictions should not be considered when measuring the equity
spcurity’s far value and prohibts an entity from recognizing a
contractual sale restriction as a separate unit of account. The
amendments in the ASU are effective for the Trust beginning
ofter Decermnber 15, 2024, The Trust is currently evaluating the
impact the adoption of this new accounting standard will have
on its fimancial statements and related disclosures.

3. Fees

Management Fee

As defined in the Confidential Offering Memorandum, the
Investment Manager earns a management fee payable monthly
in arnears. The management fee & accrued as of each calendar
day, cakculeted ot o rate of 1.10% per annum of the Trust’s net
assel value, prior to anyr edemplions and performance fees. Units
held by the Imestment Manager's afflistes do not bear any
management fees,

Performance Fee

As defined in the Confidential Offering Memorandum, the
Investment Manager earns @ monthly performance fee egual o
15% of the new profit in respect of YEN Closs Uniks, YEN Class
{Hedged) Units and USD Class Units. The performance fee &
ascerued on each business day and is payable as of the last
business day of each calendar month and upon any mtra-month
redemption o transfer of Units. The performance fee will be
caloulated and reported in the currency in which the applicable
dlass of Units is denommated. With respect to the YEN Class Uns
and the YEN Class (Hedgedy Units, each performance fee will be
caloulated without takmg into account any effect on the net asset
valhse of sich Units due to fluctuations in the exchange rate with
respect to the Trust's U.S. Dollar-cenominzted assets during the
period in respect of which such performance fee B being
caloulated. Additionally, with respect to the YEN Class (Hedged)
Units, the performance fee will be calculoted without taking nto
account any expenses, profits or losses relating to any currency
hedge. Urnits held by the investrment Manager's affilates will not
bear any parfomance fees,

4. Related Parties

UBS Investment Bank, an affiiate of the Investment Manager, &
one of the Trust's executing and prime beokers. The Trust did not
mcur commEsions and other charges on imvestment transactons

with UBS Investment Bark for the year ended December 29,
2023
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Dwuring the year ended December 28, 2023, the Trust conducted
investment transactions, in the normal course of business, at fair
valkue with certan offiliated funds sponsored by the investment
Manager. For the year ended December 29, 2023, refated party
sples were $1710,854, Any gains and losses, as applicable,
resulting from sales are included in pet realized gein on
imvestments in securities and foreign curency and net realized
Ioss on derivative contracts and foreign curency m the statement
of operations.

Certain brokerage arrangements provide that the vestment
Manager and s affiiates receie soft doliar credits refated to
brokerage commissions paid by the Trust and other affiliated
funds. Such credits can be used by the Investment Monager for
research and refated services that would then be paid for, o
povided by, the brokers, The research services obltained by the
Investment Manager through the use of soft dollar credits can be
for the benefit of the Trust or other funds managed by the
Imvestrnent Manager.

Due to investment Manager represents payable for management
and performance feas.

5. Risk Managemant

The Trust is subject to market risk associeted with changes in the
value of its investments end derivative Tinancial instruments, as
wiell as credit risk from the loss of appreciation if a counterparty
fails to perform. The Investment Manager takes an active role in
managing and monitaring the Trusts market and oredit risks and
has established formal control procedures, which are reviewed
on 2n ongoing base.

The Investment Manager has appointed an nvestment Riek
Committes comprised of senioe personnel from different
dickplings throughout the Imvestment Manager and #s affiliates
The Investment Rask Committee mests regulbrly and reviews the
Trust's potential exposures to market and credit risks besed on
analyses performed by Risk Managers and Rk Control

Market Risk

The lmestment Manager monkors the rek parameters and
expected volatiity of individual postions and the Trust's
aggregate portfolio. Additionally, the Investment Manager seeks
to control portfollo rigks through selective and dynamic sizing of
pasitions based on a regular evaluation of each mestment’s rek
and reward charactenistics, Regulor mark-to-market postfolic
monitoring  belps  the  Imestment Manager mondor  the
investments. The Imvestment Manager has abo developed and
uses profrietery statstical modeds to identify and hedge systemic
portfolio risk, aswell as indhddual position specific rek. While the
Investment Manager generally seeks to hedge certain ponfolio
risks in an effort to incresse the proportion of the Trust's return
attributable to perceived high value-added risk exposures, the
Irvestment Manager does not attempt to hedge all market or
other risks inherent in the Trust's posiions.

Securities sokd, not yet purchased, represent obligations of the
Trust to celiver speafed financal instuments &t contracted
prices, thereby oeating commitments to purchase the financisl
instruments in the market at preveilng prices. Consequently, the
Trust's ultamate obligation to satsfy the sale of securities sold, not
yet purchased, may exceed the amount recogrized in the
staterment of assets and habilities.

Riks assoceted with epidemic and pandemic diseases, including,
wathout  limitation, troved restrictions, closed  internationzl
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borders, guarantines, disruptions Lo supply chains and lower
consumer demand, a rise in protectionist trade policies, slowing
global economic growth; the risk of trade desputes and the
possibdity of changes to some intermational trade agreements has
mpacted the mestments heldd by the Trust durng the year and
could continue to affect the economies of manmy nations, inways
that cannot be foreseen at the present time, and may adversely
impact the markets n which the Trust invests,

Credit Risk

Al of the Trust's positions, mcluding cash, due from brokers and
derivative assets are held waith its brokess, counterparties and
other financial institutions. In the event these parties &g unable
o fulfill ther oblgations, the Trust would bz subject ko credit risk.
As 3 result of the Trust's rading redationship vath these finms, the
Trust could have a significant concentration of cedit risk with a
certzin broker(si. To the extent the Trust invests in derivetives,
synthetic instruments (contracts for differences) or it effects OTC
transactions, the Trust may take on oredit risk with regard to
parties with whom it trades and may a2l bear the risk of
settlement defaul. Inoan effort © mimimize ths sk, the
Investment Manager employs a margin  monitoring  and
menagement protocol on o daily bass to monitor exposure levels,
The Investment Marager attempls to diversify the credit nisk
associated with its rading activities by trading with muliple
entities and allocating transaction volume to counterparties with
higher credit ratings, bt it cannol guarantee ks efforts will be
successful In addition, the Imestment Manager attempts to
remain active across muliple counterparties where possible in
order 1o maintain fexibility. The goal of the Investrment Manager
is to babnce operating, counterparty credit, counterparty
settlement and finoncial rieks. Additionally, refer to Note 6 Tor
Turther discussion on the use of master netting arrangements to
help rmitigate counterparty credit risk,

Aside from daily monitorng of such relationships, thess
relationships are governed by various contracts. Generally, these
contracts are standard industry agresments such as International
Swaps and Derwatives Assocition (1ISDA) agreements for OTC
contracks. These agreements set forth each party’s basic rights,
responsibiities and duties. These agreements abko contain
information regarding financizl terms and conditions, as well as
termination and events of defaul provisians. The Trust's rading
drategies are dependent wpon  the existence of these
agreements. The Trust's counterparties usually have multiple
specified everts under which they can terminate ndividual
transactions or the entire agregment. These events are most
commonly refated to declines in assets under management o
performance below certam thresholds during a specified period.
Should 2 trigger event occwr, counterparties have the right to
terminate ndvdual trarsactions or entire agreements, which
could severely impact the Trust's portfolio. The Trust & not aware
of any “trigger evenls” occurring during the year ended
December 28, 2023, Certain swap agresments contam provisions
that require the Trust to either post additional colsteral or
immediately seftle any outstanding liabilty balances upon the
oecurrence of specific oedit riek related events.

The Trust invests in convertible bonds. corporate bonds and
government bonds. Until such investiments are sold or mature,

the Trust is exposed to credit risk reboted to whether the isuer
wall meet its obligation when the securities come due.

Currency Risk

The Trust may imnvest 2 portion of its assets in non-LL.S. currencies,
of in instruments depominsted in non-U.S. currencies, the prices
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of which are determmned with reference o curencies other than the U.S. Dollar, The Trust, howewver, values its securities and other
asets in LS. Dollars. The Trust generally seeks to hedge all or any portion of its foreign currency exposure. To the extent the Trust's
imvestrments are not hedged, the value of the Trust's assets will fluctuate with U.5. Dollar exchange rates as well as the price changes
of the Trust's investments m the various local markets and currencies.

6. Dervatlve Contracts

Im the normal course of bugsiness, the Trust enters into denvatives Tor trading purposes. Derivatives are efther exchange-traded or OTC
contracts. Exchange-raded derbratives are standard contracts taded on a regulsted exchange. OTC contracts are private contracts
negotiated with counterparties. The primary differences in reks associated with OTC contracts and exchange-traded contracts ane
creslit and Bouidity risks. For exchange-traded contracts, eredit rsk & limited due to the role of the exchange or clearing corporation.
The Trust's maximum rsk of oss from counterparty credit rek on OTC contracts & imited to the unrealized gain amount on any open
contracts, net of any collateral recenved or colleteral paid, plus any unsettled trade amounts. For the year ended December 29, 2023,
derivatives inchede forward currency contracts, oplions, wamants and swaps. Details of these derivatives are provided below,

Forward Contracts

The Trust 5 subject to foreign cwrrency exchange risk in the normal cowrse of pursuing s investment obectives. The Trust may use
OTC forward contracis o gain exposure 1o o hedge against changes in the value of its foreign currencies or to hedge aganst foreign
curreney fluctustions babween the functional currency of the Trust and the demorination of the Trust's Yen Class (Hedged) Units. A
forward contract is 2 cash market transaction in which two parties agree to the purchase o sake of a currency at a specified price on
@ specified date in the future. Lipon entering into such contracts, the Trust bears the risk of exchange rates mowng unespectedly, in
which case, the Trust may not achieve the anticipated bensfits of the forward contract and may realize 2 loss. Forward comtracts are
traded in unregulated markets and are typically liquidated by setting cash,

Options and Warrants

The Trust is subject to equity price risk, mberest rate risk and forelgn currency exchange risk in the normal course of pursulng its
imvestment objectives, The Trust may wse exchange-traded or OTC options or warrants to gain exposure to o hedge against changes
in the valse of its equities, interest rates or foreign currencies. Options, which include warrants, are contracts thak grank the holder,
for a premium payment, ether the right to purchase or sell a financial instrument at 2 specified price within a specifiad tme or on a
specrfied dete from o to the wiiter of the option. Dptions written by the Trust do not give rise o counterparty credit nsk, as they
obligate the Trust and mol ks countes party o perform . Options veritten by the Trust are subject to off-balance-sheet risk, o5 the Trust’s
satisfaction of the obligations may exceed the amount recognized in the statement of assats and laitees. Oplions and warrants ang
typically iquidated by selling, exercising or through expiration.

Swaps

The Trust is subject to equity price risk n the normal course of pursuing its mvestment objectives. In certain instances, the Trust may
enter nto swap contracts to obtain equity price exposure of to help hedge against equity price risk, Swaps, which include contracts
for differences, are agreements between two parties to exchange cash flows based on an agreed smount of underiying eguity shares.
Swaps are raded in unregulzted markets and are either iquidated or held to maturty. The unrealized gain or loss, rather than the
contract or notional amounts, represents the approximate future cash fliows. The Trust may elect o receive o pay equity retumns
bosed on the ogreed member of underlyng shares versus payng o receiing 2 financing amount. Swaps ore marked to market based
on the move of the undesling equity security and the accrued financing amourt, and the change, if any, & recorded as net change
in unreaslized spprecistion/depr eciation on derivative contracts and foreign currency in the statement of operations. The risks of swaps
include changes in market condions affectng the value of the contract or the cash flows and the possible inablity of the counterparty
to fulfill its obligations under the agresment.

The followrig tabde s=ts forth the Trust's dervative contracts held at December 29, 2023, by pamary nisk exposure, location n the
statement of assets and lighilties and guartery average trading levels for the year then ended. The values in the tables below exclude
netting by counterparty and the effects of cash received or posted as collateral pursuant to derivative contracts, and therefore, are
not representative of the Trust’s net exposure.
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The following table sets forth the Trust's gains and losses related to derfatie activities by prirmary risk exposure and [ocation in the
statement of operations for the year ended December 29, 2023. These gains and losses should be considered in the contest that

derivative contracts may have been executed to economically hedge securities and accordingly, certain gains of losses on cenvetive
contracts may offset certan gains o lasses atiributable to securities.
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The table below presents the fair value of derivative contracts by major product type on 3 gross basis, Gross far values exclude the
effects of both counterparty netting and collateral, and therefore are not representative of the Trust’s expasure. The tble below also
presefils the amounts that have been offsatin the statement of assets and labilities due Lo counterparty netting, as wel as cash and
securities collateral posted and received under enforceable oredit support agreements reflected up to the vakie of derivatives.
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7. Financial Guarantees

The Trust enters wito contracts that contam a vanety of mdemnifications. The Trust's maximum exposure under these arrangements
is not knowan. However, the Trust hes not bad prior clhams of kosses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of koss to be
fermobe,

8. Units

The Trust issues its units of bereficial interest (Units} in three (3} separate classes. USD Class Units, YEN Class Units and YEN Class
{Hedged) Units. The liabiities of the Trust areing i relation to ony class of Units will be met from undivided assets. The Trustee will
attribute all gains and losses on anmy currency hedge to the YEN Class (Hedged) Units and may abo attribute other assets and Rabdities
of the Trust 1o one or more particular classes of Units.,

The Units are offered in Japan a5 a public offering under Article 2, Poragraph 3, ltemm 1 of the Finangial instruments and Exchange
Lawv.

Units are ssued monthly 2s of the first business day of @ calendar month and at such other times a5 the Trustee may from time to
tirmie determine. YEN Class Units and YEN Class (Hedged) Units are mitially offered at a purchase prios of 1PY10,000 per Unit and USD
Class Units are intizlly offered 2t a purchase price of $100 per Unit. After the initial issuance of Units, Units may continue to be
offered at the prevailing net asset value per Unit. The Trust is currently offering a single series of YEN Class Units, YEMN Class (Hedged)
Linits and USD Class Units; however, the investment Manager, may detenming to issue addtional series of YEN Class Units, YEN Class
{Hedged) Units and USD Class Units in the future. The minimum initial subscription size for Units in the Trust will be § W1 0,000,600
(o its eguivalent in LS. Dollors), with respect to offers to subscribe for a specific amount of JBY (or U.S. Dollars, as spplicablel. or (i
1,000 Units, with respact to offers to subscribe Tor 2 specific number of Units.

The Trust also offers a class of Units (USD Class IManagement) Unitsk cenominated in ULS. Dollars © an affiiste of the investment
Manager. Such Units will not bear management fees of perfarmance fees. It & anticipatad that the Units Bsued to the imestrment
Manager's affilicte will be redeemed, on an approximetely dollar-for-dollar basis, as additional Units are ssued after the Trust
commences ks trading and investment operations. Such affilate, may, however, be reguired by act to reduce is investment in the
Trust to rot more than 3% of the value of the Trust's outstanding Units as of the first anniversary of the establishment of the Trust.
At December 31, 2023, there were no USD Class (Management) Units outstanding.

Generally, Ungtholders waill have the right to request redemption of any o all Units as of the first business day of a calendar month,
by providing five business days phor written potice to the Administrator

Auahilnel finorciol salamnents oy of o for Ue e enued Decernbwe 29, 2023, Faym 16
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Uiy Units
Cufttpngding = Ousstand mg ot
Decamber 30, Units Uretn Docemier 29,
B0z baumd s med parrz
YEH Ll 1,580,261 00 13,2700 [T 1,154, R
¥EM Ulmia Hesined B8 68 00 1248 FE500 00, 41 54K
LBSLY Lol Fed BHT OO AR fAs Al 550, S K

9. Financiel Highlights

The following represents the per unit miormation, total retwrn and ratios to average net assets for the year ended December 29,
2023:

YEN Clesn.
YEN Cim hodged s Gl

[Far unit operating performancs
Beginning neiavct snue IFY W36 IPY B 796 5 110.85
nEe (kg fem apsraont

[ e L L [ ] H (=11

el gain o mecsamnerts in s ourthes S hitve Conume s and Besign £ ey 1.0 31 EBD
Testal freem opurationg 1,534 E 684

ok st yelio JPY LR JFY k2] 5 AE-R ]

Tetal rturn
FriLs| e besfore: En‘{'ﬂ'ﬂr\'e Tez 14.80 = 1.00 BED W,
Ferfomance fon ke ] 2] 210
Tetsl retuen S pafior msnog fsd W0 % O3 ¥ E11 %
[rposres obfee fhan podoemance koo 120 % 321 % g )
Perfnmnases for ALE DLEh DER
Total expanses 378 % 171 % 3B %
[t Imvetrmant I ADE W R DOy %

The fnancial highlights are calculated for each class taken as a whole. An indeaidual Unitholider™s retun and ratios may vary from
these returms and ratios besed on the timing of cepital transactions.

10. Subsequent Events

The lovestment Manager has evaluated the possibility of subsequent events existing in the Trust's financial statements through March
28, 2024, the date the financial statements were avaiable to be ssued, and has concluded that there are no recognized or non-
recogmzed subsequent events for financial statement adpstment o disclosure, other than noted below.

Curing the second querter of 2022, management of UBS ©'Connor LLC is expected (o enact a reorganizetion and statulory menger
in which UBS O Connor LLC wall merge with and into UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC UBS AM Americas), formerly known
a5 UBS Asset Management (Americast inc, Lipon the completion of the reorganizetion and merger, UBS O Connor LLC wall cease to
it a5 3 separati kegal entity and UBS AN Amenicas will assume all nghts and obligations of UBS O'Connor LLE, including s role a8
the imvestment manager of the Trust UBS AN Americas is a wholly owned subsidiary of UBS AG (LUBS} and B registered with the LS.
Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment adviser. Concumently, UBS Fund Management {irefand] Ltd. will be appointed
as manager and UBS AM Amercas appointed as sub-adviser of the Trusl Purswant to the Investment Manager Agreement, UBS A
Americas will perform the discretionary investment management of the Trust.

Auaibel finareiol satmmunts oy of ared fon U yese e Decernber 29, 2023, Paym 17
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2025

127,929,944

18,238,972,116

69,425,528

9,897,997,527
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2025 12,500,000
12,500,000 20 2,713

10

50
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UBS
2024 12 31
2024 2023
54,322 8,809 106,139 17,213
172,071 27,905 430,177 69,762
226,393 36,714 536,316 86,974
10 6,130,593 994,198 3,379,617 548,072
11 14,909,184 2,417,822 14,328,375 2,323,633
21,039,777 3,412,021 17,707,992 2,871,705
21,266,170 3,448,735 18,244,308 2,958,679
15 12,500,000 2,027,125 12,500,000 2,027,125
4,114,914 667,316 1,640,619 266,059
16,614,914 2,694,441 14,140,619 2,293,184
175,646 28,485
175,646 28,485
12 4,651,256 754,294 3,928,043 637,011
4,651,256 754,294 3,928,043 637,011
4,651,256 754,294 4,103,689 665,495
21,266,170 3,448,735 18,244,308 2,958,679
2025 25
L 1 L 1
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UBS
2024 12 31
2024 2023

8,965,242 1,453,893 7,267,815 1,178,622
(4,695,269) (761,432) (5.682,987) (921,610)
(3.714) (602) (7,233) (1,173)

4,266,259 691,859 1,577,595 255,839

483,616 78,428 337,134 54,673

4,749,875 770,287 1,914,729 310,512
(634,961) (102,972) (274,110) (44,452)

4,114,914 667,316 1,640,619 266,059
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UBS
2024 12 31
14
7,600,000 1,232,492 1,048,301 170,003 8,648,301 1,402,495
4,900,000 794,633 4,900,000 794,633
(1,048,301) (170,003) (1,048,301) (170,003)
1,640,619 266,059 1,640,619 266,059
12,500,000 2,027,125 1,640,619 266,059 14,140,619 2,293,184
14
12,500,000 2,027,125 1,640,619 266,059 14,140,619 2,293,184
(1,640,619) (266,059) (1,640,619) (266,059)
4,114,914 667,316 4,114,914 667,316
12,500,000 2,027,125 4,114,914 667,316 16,614,914 2,694,441
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
4,266,259 691,859 1,577,595 255,839
309,923 50,260 182,111 29,533
(2.839,111) (460,419) (801,724) (130,016)
675,492 109,545 1,443,317 234,063
2,412,563 391,245 2,401,299 389,419
(674,751) (109,424) (146,724) (23,794)
2,254,575 365,624 2,254,575 365,624
483,616 78,428 337,134 54,673
483,616 78,428 337,134 54,673
(244,006) (39,570)
4,900,000 794,633
(1,640,619) (266,059) (1,048,301) (170,003)
(1,640,619) (266,059) 3,607,693 585,060
580,809 94,190 6,199,402 1,005,357
14,328,375 2,323,633 8,128,973 1,318,276
14,909,184 2,417,822 14,328,375 2,323,633
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UBS
2024 12 31
UBS 2005 12
2011
2019
2013 48
UCITS
2013
2013 257
IFRSs

IFRSs

UBS
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UBS

2024 2023
8,699,846 7,249,727
265,396 18,088
8,965,242 7,267,815

2024 2023
8,429,111 6,945,932
270,735 303,795
8,699,846 7,249,727

2024
2023
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

2024 2023
17,048 434,861
3,350,495 3,853,778
550,923 554,630
776,803 839,718
4,695,269 5,682,987
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2024 2023
34,803 30,000
42,152 44,090
473,968 480,540
309,923 182,110

18 2023 18

2024 2023
2,155,031 2,230,021
460,500 486,000
260,000
12,504 56,869
322,453 327,616
215,569 220,091
184,438 273,181
3,350,495 3,853,778

2024 2023
418,050 478,650
21,167 32,167

439,217 763,186
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2024 2023
634,859 274,649
102 (539)
634,961 274,110
2024 2023
4,749,875 1,914,729
593,734 239,341
60,452 41,591
(460) 477)
(22,550) (9,624)
3,683 3,818
102 (539)
634,961 274,110
OECD
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2024 OECD

2024 2023
491,326 491,326
12 31 491,326 491,326
385,187 333,370
51,817 51,817
12 31 437,004 385,187
106,139 157,956
12 31 54,322 106,139

2024 2023
1,027,304 783,298
244,006
12 31 1,027,304 1,027,304
597,127 466,833
258,106 130,294
12 31 855,233 597,127
430,177 316,466
12 31 172,071 430,177
175,646 260,538

175,646
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10

11

175,646 436,184
2015 10
2024 12 31
1.3606

2024 2023
5,879,435 2,929,240
109,787 64,483
82,771 292,618

53,459

5,141 93,276
6,130,593 3,379,617

2024 2023
175,053 205,720
590,744 506,962
966,543 966,198
12,601,062 12,140,452
575,782 509,044
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2024 2023
2,416,436 1,493,196
627,253 709,221
175,646 260,538
127,925
1,431,921 1,337,163
4,651,256 3,928,043
2024 12 31
65 2,156 396 621,756
1,500 1,997,487 7,038,442 3,138,054
(1,933,373) (13) (1,240,559)
1,565 66,270 7,038,825 2,519,251
69 2,606 2 600,277
1,595 2,414,568 43,144 3,029,647
(2,337,067) (1,197,702)

1,664 80,107 43,146 2,432,222
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S1661/2006
2023
2024 12 31
3,043,689
2023 12 31
2,202,417

19

-12

176,168

-12

388,463
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2006/48/EC

2,557,139

2,557,139
204,571

2023 UBS

3,219,857

175,646 2,766,526
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14,140,619
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16,614,914 2023

UCITS AIF

2024 2023

338 256

338 256
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2024 2023 2024 2023

31,878 53,478 110,893 122,431
31,878 53,478 110,893 122,431

15

2023 UBS AG UBS AG 2005 12
2024 2023
20 20,000,000 20,000,000
12.5 12,500,000 12,500,000
UBS AG
16
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG

12 31
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2024 2023
8,699,846 7,249,727
265,396 18,088
8,965,242 7,267,815
17,048 434,861
17,048 434,861

2024 2023
UBS 12,601,062 12,140,452
5,879,435 2,929,240
163,246 64,483
18,643,743 15,134,175

2024 2023
2,416,436 1,493,196
2,416,436 1,493,196

UBS
2024 12 31 2,335,978 2023 1,065,822

10
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0.131

18

2024 12 31

19

UBS AG

IE ETF
ETF
81

20

21

2024 12 31
2023

22
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2024 2023
2023 0.084
1,640,619 1,048,301
2023
AG 2024 31 UBS AG AG
AG
AG UBS
2024 26 UBS

2025

25
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31 December 2024

2024 2023

Note £ £
ASSETS
MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 8 54 322 106,139
Right of use assets a 172,071 430177
Total non-current assets 226 393 536,316
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 10 6,130,593 3379617
Cash and cash equivalents 11 14,909,184 14,328,375
Total current assets 21038777 17,707,902
TOTAL ASSETS 21 266170 18,244 308
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
Called up share capital 15 12,500,000 12,500,000
Retained Eamings 4114914 1640619
TOTAL EQUITY 16614914 14,140,619
MOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Finance lease liability a - 175,645
Total non-current liabilities - 175,646
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 12 4,651,256 3828043
Total current liabilities 4 651,256 3928043
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4651256 4 103,689
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITES 21,266,170 18,244,308

The accompanying notes form an integral pant of the financial statements.

Approved by the Board on 25 April 2025,

Bigned by
DocuSigned by: «ﬂuﬂqf{d
| Ciegalyick { 1_ é‘-’ﬁ
Director TR il Director Deirdr mley

Ian Fitzpatrick
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023

Note € €

Revenue 3 8,965,242 7,267 815
Administrative Expenses 4 {4,695,269) {5,682 987)
Interest Expense (3,714) (7,233
Operating Profit 4 266,259 1,577,595
Interest income 483,616 337,134
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 5 4,749 875 1,914 729
Tax on ordinary activities 7 (B34,961) {274 110)
Total comprehensive profit for the year 4,114,914 1,840 619

There are no recognized gains or losses in the year other than those recognized in the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

All results have been generated by continuing activities.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Called-up
Share
Capital Retained
{Note 14) Eamings Total
€ € €
At 1 January 2023 7,600,000 1,048,301 8,648,301
spr:‘;f:i‘;sp;r;m theissuanceof 000,000 - 4,900,000
Dividend paid to UBS AG - (1,048,301} (1,048,301
Profit for the year 1,640619 1,640,619
At 31 December 2023 12,500,000 1,640,619 14,140,619
Called-up
Share
Capital Retained
{Note 14) Earnings Total
€ € €
At 1 January 2024 12,500,000 1,640,618 14,140,619
Proceeds from the issuance of _
share capital
Dividend declared to UBS AG - (1,640,619) (1,640,619)
Profit for the year - 4,114,914 4,114,914
At 31 December 2024 12,500,000 4114914 16,614,914

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
£ £

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit 4,266,259 1,577,585
Depreciation 309,923 182111
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other recerahles (2,839.111) (801,724)
{Decreaselfincrease in trade and other payables and provisions 675,492 1.443 317
Cash generated from operations 2,412 563 2,401,280
Income tax paid (674,751) (146,724)
Met cash flows (used by) / from operating activities 1,737,812 2,254 575

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 483,616 337,134
Net cash flows from investing activities 483,618 337,134

Cash flows from financing activitias
Lease adjustment - (244 008)
|ssuance of Share Capital - 4 500,000
Dividend paid i1,640,619) i(1,048,301)
Net cash flows (used by) / from financing activities (1.640,619) 3,607,693
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 580,808 6,159 402
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,328,375 8128973
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14,909 184 14,328 375

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024

1, ORGANISATION

UBS Fund Management (lreland) Limited is a private limited company incorporated
under Irish law on 1 December 2005 and is resident in Irefand. It is authorized by the
Central Bank of Ireland under the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended, and under the
Central Bank (Supervsion And Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings
For Collective Investment In Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019, as amended
(collectively the “UCITS Regulations”), to act as manager of collective imvestment
schemes It is also authorized by the Central Bank of Ireland under the Eurcpean Union
(Alternative Investment Fund Managers) Regulations 2013 to act as an alternative
investment fund manager of collective investment schemes.

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out below.

{a) Staterment of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

{b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention. The
preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accom panying notes. Management believes that the estimates utilized
in preparing its financial statements are reasonable and prudent. Actual results could
differ from these estimates, The directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, Howewver, the directors are aware of a reorganisation plan
developed at the UBS Asset Management divisional level, which will impact some of
the entities within the fund management area. Although no formal regulatory approvals
have been sought to date, the directors are aware that the Company is being
considered as part of the plan. As such, the directors are of the opinion that this creates
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the ability of the Company
to continue as a going concern. In the absence of any formal approvals, they continue
to adopt the going concemn basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial
statements.

(e} Revenue and expense recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
ficw to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when
the payment is being made.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.
Revenue includes fees for the provision of management and investment management
senvices, exclusive of value added tax and is recognized on an accruals basis.
Expenses are recognized on an accruals basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 December 2024 (Continued)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currencies
The functional currency for the Company is also the presentation currency (Euro).

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated using
the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions denominated in other
currencies are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Profits and losses arising from foreign currency translation and on settlement of
amounts receivable and payable in other currencies are recognized in the income
statement.

{g) Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

{fl Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilties and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced tothe extent that it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

{gl Pension costs
The Company operates a defined contribution scheme for employees. The Company
makes contributions to the scheme on a monthly basis. Contributions are charged to
the profit and loss account as they become payable.

(h)  Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes costs directly attributable to
making the asset capable of operating as intended.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assals,

The residual values, useful fives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 December 2024 (Continued)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1] Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, deposits with credit institutions, and other liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts comprise transaction bank accounts with overdraft
facilities which are drawn down,

Y]] Leases
The Company predominantly enters into lease contracts, of contracts that include
lease components, as a lessee of real estate, including offices, with a small number of
IT hardware leases.

When the Company is a lessee in 3 lease arrangement, the Company recognizes a
lease liability and corresponding right-of-use (Rol)) asset at the commencement of the
lease term when the Company acquires control ofthe physical use ofthe asset. Current
lease liabilities are presented within Trade and other payables measured at amortized
cost. Roll assets are presanted within non-current assets. The lease liability is
measured based on the present value of the lease payments over the |ease term,
discounted using the Company's unsecured borrowing rate, given that the rate implicit
in a lease is generally not observable to the lessee. Interest expense on the lease
liability is presented within Interest expense,

The Rol asset is depreciated over the shorter of the |ease term or the useful life of the
underlying asset, with the depreciation presented within Depreciation and impairment
of leases.

Where the Company acts as a lessor or sub-lessor under a finance lease, a receivable
is recognized in Trade and cther receivables measured at amortized cost at an amount
equal to the present value of the aggregate of the lease payments. Initial direct costs
are also included in the initial measurement of the lease receivable. Lease payments
received by the Company during the lease term are allocated as repayments of the
outstanding receivable. Interest income on the lease receivable is presented within
Interest income.

Expected credit losses (ECL) on lease receivables are determined following the
general impairment model within IFRS 9, Financial Instruments.

(k) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market and that the company
has no intention of trading. Trade and other receivables, subsequent to initial
recognition, are held at amortized cost less allowance for incurred impairment losses,

] Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and derecognized when
its contractual liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 December 2024 (Continued)

3. REVEMUE

Revenue, all of which arises from continuing operations, represents fees and other income
eamed in the provision of fund management andfor investment management services to
various funds and other investment vehicle and fees earned under the sendce agreements with
other UBS Group AG entities,

2024 2023
€ €

Management and Investment manager fees 8,699 846 7,249,727
Service Fee 265,396 18.088

8,965,242 7,267,815

Geographical split of revenue generated by Management and Investment manager fees is
presented below:

2024 2023

€ €

Ireland 8,429 111 5,045 032
Luxembourg - -
Cayman |slands 270,735 303,795

8,609,846 7240727

The customers of the Company have been disaggregated based on the factors above. At 1
January 2024, there were no outstanding or incomplete contracts and as such there were no
restatements made in the financial statements of the Company (neither at 1 January 2023).
The Company has salisfied all perfformance obligations during the year, and there are no
incomplete contracts as at 31 December 2024 (neither at 31 December 2023).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

4, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administration expenses, all of which arises from continuing operations, represent costs and

charges for the provision of fund management andfor investment management services to
various funds and other investment vehicles.

2024 2023

€ €

e o s moss  aauent
Personnel costs 3,360,495 3853778
Professional services fees 550,823 554 630
Other Administrative expenses 776,803 830 718

4,695,269 5,682 887

5, PROFIT/LOSS) ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging the following:

2024 2023

€ €

Auditors remuneration - Audit fees 34,803 30,000
Tax advisory sendces 42152 44 080
Other professional fees 473,968 480,540

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 308 923 182,110

The audit fees for the statutory audit contain only fees of the management Company. There
are no other assurance fees and non-audit fees paid to the Company's Auditor recognized in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

B. EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
{a) Staff costs

The Company had an average of 18 employees during the year {2023:18). The aggregate
payroll costs of these staff were as follows:

2024 2023

€ €

Salaries 2,155,031 2,230,021
Bonus 450,500 486,000
Other variable compensation - 260,000
Share-based Payments 12504 56,869
Social Welfare Costs 322 453 327 616
Other Pension Costs 215,569 220,081
Other Personnel Costs 184,438 273,181
3,350,495 3,853,778

Other personnel costs represent the cost of recruitment, charges for the provision of staff
training, risk insurance policy and medical insurance of employees. Share based payments
disclosed above relate to cash and equity settled compensation.

(b} Directors” remuneration

2024 2023

Aggregate emoluments in respect of qualifying

e 418,050 478,650
Aggregate contributions to a retirement benefit
scheme in respect of directors’ qualifying 21,167 14,485
sendces — defined contributions schemes

439,217 493,135
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

[8 TAXATIOM OF PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

{a) Analysis of profit and loss accourt chargedoredt):

2024 2023
€ €
Republic of Ireland corporation tax on
Tax charge for the year 534,859 274,649
Adjustment in respect of prior year's accrual 102 {539)
Tatal charge for the year 634,961 274,110
(bl Reconciliafion of fhe expected tax charge af the effective rate.
2024 2023
€ €
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 4,749 875 1,914,728
Prafit on ordinary activities multiplied by
standard rate of corporation tax in the
Republic of Ireland of 12.5% (2022; 12.5%) 593,734 238,341
Effects of:
Income tax at higher rate 60,452 41,501
Mon-deductible expenses - -
Tax Relief at Source expense {450) (477)
Temporary differences (22.550) (9.624)
Increase in provision - -
Income tax payable 3,683 3818
Mon Taxable income -
Pension - -
Adjustment in respect of prior year's accrual 102 (539)
Current tax charge for the year 634,961 274,110
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

7. TAXATION OF PROFIT ONM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Fillar Two top-up taxes under Global Anti-Base Erosion rules,

Ireland has enacted legislation implementing the Pillar Two Global Anti-Base Erosion rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development ("CGECD") that
infroduced domestic top-up taxes that applied to the Company during 2024, Moreover, Ireland
enacted legislation that introduced non-domestic top-up taxes that are effective from 1 January
2024,

The exception in paragraph 44 of 1AS 12, Income Taxes, which requires that deferred tax
assels and deferred tax liabilities be neither recognized nor disclosed in respect of such top-up
taxes, has been applied for the purposes of these financial statements.

The Company's current tax expenses for 2024 does not include an expense in relation to top-

up taxes due to the application of the transitional safe harbor rules described by the OECD
guidelines as implemented by Ireland.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

8. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2024 2023
£ €
Cost:
At 1 January 491,326 481,326
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at 31 December 491,325 481,326
Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 385,187 333,370
Depreciation 51,817 51817
As at 31 December 437,004 385187
Carrying amount at 1 January 106,138 157,956

Carrying amount at 31 December 54,322 106,138
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WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

=} LEASES
2024 2023
€ €
Cost:
At 1 January 1,027,304 783,208
Additions - 244 006
Disposals - -
As at 31 December 1,027,304 1,027,304
Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 887127 456,833
Depreciation 258,106 130,204
As at 31 December 855,233 597
Carrying amount at 1 January 430,177 316,466
Carrying amount at 31 December 172,071 430177
Lease Liabilities:
Within one year 175,646 260,538
Two to five years - 175,646
Thereafter - -
Total 175,646 436,184

The Right of Use assets is presented within non-current assets in Statement of Financial
Position. The lease agreement is valid for 10 years since 1% September 2015, therefore
remaining lease as at 31 December 2024 is 8 months. The interest rate used to discount the
lease liability is 1.3806 percent, which has not changed since the initial recognition ofthe lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

10, TRADE AMD OTHER RECENMABLES

2024 2023
€ €
Management fees receivables 5,879,435 2,929,240
Other amounts receivable from funds 108,787 64 483
Other receivables 82,771 292618
Amounts receivable from group companies 53,459 -
Corporation tax refund receivable 5141 93 276
5,130,583 3379617
11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2024 2023
€ €
Balances with bank

- on current account (held in the State) 175,053 205,720

- on fixed-term deposit with maturity of less
Wb as foita 500,744 506,962
- on call deposit account 966,543 966,198
- on current accounts (held in foreign countries) 12,601,062 12,140,452
- on expense accounts related to the managed 575.782 500,044

Funds
14,509,184 14,328,375
12 TRADE AMD OTHER PAYABLES

2024 2023
€ €
Amounts owed to group companies 2416 436 1,493,196
Amounts related to personnel costs B27.253 709,221
Finance lease liability 175,646 260,538
Corporation tax - 127,825
Other accruals 1,431,921 1,337,163
4,651 256 3,828 043
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

13 FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AMD POLICIES

The Company's principal liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The Company has trade
and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that are generated directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to various risks, including credit risk and liguidity risk. Mo market risk
exposure arises as the Company does not hold any investments, except for foreign exchange
risk on monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

Monetary assets and liabilities by currency of denomination as at 31 December 2024 (including
intragroup exposures in foreign currency).

EUR CHF GBP JFY UsD
Cash and cash equivalents - G5 2,156 306 621,756
Trade and Other
B - 1,500 1,997 487 7038442 3,138,054
Trade and Other Payables - - (1,933,373 (13} (1,240,559)
Lot cumencieck - 1,565 66,270 7,038825 2519251

denomination

Eurc-denominated items do not create any FX exposure, as this is the company's functional
currency. The remaining amounts are converted into Euro using the closing rate on the balance
sheet date, These are the amounts that will be exposed to changes in foreign currency rates.

EUR EUR/CHF EUR/GBFP EURMPY EURMED

Cash and cash equivalents - 59 2 606 2 600,277
Trade and Other . 1595 2414568 43144 3020647
Receivables

Trade and Other Payables - - (23370587 - (1,187.702)

Total functional currency

1,664 80,107 43148 2,432,222

The Company does not have a trading book or otherwise hold investments (whether on a long
term or short-term basis). Market risk is limited to the change in foreign exchange rates on its
net asset value (cash, receivables, payables) in each foreign currency. The charge for market
risk is calculated in accordance with Regulation 19(c) of 51 851/2006 (Annex | of Directive
2006/49/EC), being 8% of the greater of a) the sum of the net longs and b) the sum of the net
shorts in each foreign currency (as converted to EUR at spot rates).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

13 FINANMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Met foreign currency longs A 2,557,130
Met foreign currency shorts B -
Met foreign currency exposure Max(A, By 2,557,139
Market risk (8% of exposure) 204,571

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing these risks which are
summarnzed below,

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions.

Irade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consist mainly of amounts due from related parties. Trade
receivables are monitored on a monthly basis in order to minimize material ageing and to
ensure adequate and regular collection.

Cash and short-term deposits

The credit risk on cash and short-term deposits is mitigated by using several credit institutions.
Moody's credit ratings for these institutions are: Bank of Ireland: P-1 (2023: P-1); UBS: P-1
(2023 P-1).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to seftle or meet its obligations on
time or at a reasonable price. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and by examining future and actual cash flows. The table below
summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the reporting date based
on contractual undiscounted payments.

31 December 2024

on Less than 312 1o b More than 5 Total
demand 3 maonths maonths years years
€ £ £ L3 £ €
Other Creditors - 3043689 176,168 - - 3,219,857
31 December 2023
On Less than 312 1to 5 Meore than 5 Total
demand 3 months months years years
£ € € £ € £
Other Creditors = 2202417 388,463 175,645 - 2,766 526
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 December 2024 (Continued)

13 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to market movements in exchange rates on net balance shest
positions denominated in currencies other than euro. These are primarly driven by
management fees received and receivable, and certain expenses paid and payable, in non-
euro currencies. Foreign currency exposure is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern.
The Company monitors and evaluates its capital on an ongeing basis to ensure that it complies
with the minimum capital requirements as prescribed by the Central Bank. The capital structure
of the Company consists of issued share capital and retained eamings and amounted to
€16,614,914 at year-end (2023, £14,140,519),

Business risk

The Company's revenues are dependent on the value of assets under management and the
fee rates agreed in respect of each investment vehicle, The Company's costs are largely foced
in nature in the short term. A substantial fall in assets under management may result in the
Company incurring operating losses.

14. UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company provides fund management senvces to investment funds and special purpose
vehicles, some of which are unconsolidated structured entities ("Structured Entities™). These
entities are open ended investment companies, authorized as either LICITS or AlFs, and
marketed and distributed to third party investors, principally in Europe and Asia.

The Company has an interest in some of these Structured Entities solely as a result of fees
eamed by the Company which are based on the net asset values of the entities ("Interested
Structured Entities"). The Company does not have an interest in other Structured Entities, but
does act as sponsor to these entities, as it was involved in the design and establishment of the
entities and the former brand name of the Company is included in the name of the entity
("Sponsored Structured Entities").

The assets under management of the Interested Structured Entities by category at year-end
were as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

14, UNCOMSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Conlinued)

2024 2023

EUR million EUR miflion

Structured funds 338 255
338 256

The Interested Structured Entities have various investiment objectives and policies but all funds
invest capital received from investors in a portfolio of assets in order to provide returns to those

investors from capital appreciation, income or both. The investment funds are financed through
equity capital provided by investors,

The following table summarizes the carrying values of the Company's interests in Interested
Structured Entities at year-end which are included in "Trade and Other Recepsables” on the
Statement of Financial Position, together with the total income and losses from Interested
Structured Entities for the year;

2024 2023 2024 2023
€ £ £ €
Carrying m;;:;e Income Fee income
Structured funds 31,878 53,478 110,883 122,431
31,878 53,478 110,883 122,431

The Company's maximum exposure to loss at year end in relation to its Interested Structured
Entities is imited to the carrying values shown in the table above.

15. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

During 2024 the Company was a wholly owned subsidiary of UBS AG, a company incorporated
under the Law of Switzerdand. UBS AG became the immediate and ulimate parent on 01

December 2005.
2024 2023
€ €
Authorized:
20 million ordinary shares of €1 each 20,000,000 20,000,000

Alictted, called up and fully paid:
12.5 million ordinary shares
of EUR 1 each 12,500,000 12,500,000

210/252



EDINETOOOO
OO000O000oO00o0Do00DOo00oo0oonoOo(E39669)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

15 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

All shares and vaoting rights are held by UBS AG. Shareholders are entitled to any dividends
declared and to vote at the annual AGM.

18, PARENT UNDERTAKINGS, CONTROLLING PARTIES ANMD RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings for which group financial
statements are drawn up, and of which the company is @ member, is UBS Group AG, a
company incorporated in Switzerland, Copies of its group financial statements may be obtained
from UBS Group AG, Zurich, Switzerland. The parent undertaking of the smallest group of
undertakings for which group financial statements are drawn up, and of which the company is
a member, is UBS AG, a company incorporated in Switzerland. Copies of its group financial
statements may be obtained from UBS AG, Zurich, Switzerland,

During the yvear the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with
other related parties which also incorporate funds managed by the Company. Transactions
entered into, and trading balances outstanding at 31 December with other related parties, are
as follows:

Transactions with refafed parfies - income and contra expenses

2024 2023
€ €
Management and Investment manager fees 8,609 846 7,249 727
Service Fee 265,396 18,088
8,885242 7,267,815

Transactions with related parties — expenses
Other costs 17,048 434 861
17,048 434 861

Amourts owed by related parties

2024 2023
€ €
Cash held with UBS 12,601,062 12140452
Management fees 5879435 2,929,240
Other amounts owed by related parties 163,246 G4 483
18,643,743 15,134,175
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)

16. PARENT UMDERTAKINGS, CONTROLLING PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRAMSACTIONS (continued)

Amounts owed to related parties

2024 2023

L3 L3

Other amounts owed to related parties 2416 436 1,493,196
2416436 1,493,196

The outstanding balances in respect of related-party transactions are predominantly formed by
Portfolio Manager Fee payable to intemal UBS service providers as part of the existing transfer
pricing framework, The total value of the fee owed to Investment Manager as at 31 December
2024 was EUR 2335978 (2023: EUR 1,085,822). The balances are fully offset against the
Trade and Other Receivables (Mote 10).

17. DIVIDEND PAID

2024 2023
£ £
Declared and paid during the year:
Dividends on ordinary shares:
Dividend of €0.131 (2023: €0.084) cents per share 1640619 1,048,301

18, DEFERRED TAX

At 31 December 2024 a nil net deferred income tax liability was recorded (2023: NIL). Deferred
tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary differences arising from fixed assets,
lease and sub-lease contracts as well as shared-based payments. The gross deferred tax asset
on shared-based payments was fully offset by a valuation allowance as it was not sufficiently
probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilize it.

18, SIGMIFICANT EVENTS

The merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG was completed on 31 May 2024, UBS AG
succeaded to all rights and obligations of Credit Suisse AG, including all cutstanding Credit
Suisse AG debt instruments.

As aresult of UBS integration plans regarding Credit Suisse Group AG, the sub funds from the
umbrella Credit Suisse Index Fund (IE) ETF ICAV were merged into UBS (Id) ETF PLC under
new sub fund names within the UBS (Irl) ETF PLC managed by the Company on 26 August
2024, The value of additional AUM is USD 8.1bin.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024 (Continued)
20. SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Dechert LLP was appointed to position of the Company Secretary on 1 January 2025,

There were no other significant events ater the reporting period that hawve a bearing on the
understanding of the financial statements.

21. PROVISIONS, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are no provisions, commitments or contingencies as at 31 December 2024 (2023 NIL)
that may require disclosure in the financial statements.

23, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 April 2025.
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Trustee
Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund (the “Trust”), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the condensed schedule of investments, as of December 30,
2024, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Trust at December 30, 2024, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Trust and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of interna control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date that the financia statements are available to be issued.

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting
amaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of interna control. Misstatements are considered
material if thereisasubstantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by areasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Trust's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
March 27, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF UBS FUND MANAGEMENT
(IRELAND) LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS Fund Management (Ireland) Limited (‘the Company’) for the year
ended 31 December 2024 which comprise the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the
financial statements, including the summary of material accounting policy information set out in note 2. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is Irish Law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (' IFRS') as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:
give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financia position of the Company as at 31 December 2024
and of its profit for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish
Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Materia uncertainty related to going concern
In auditing the financial statements of the Comnay, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosures made in Note 2 of the notes to the financial statements concerning the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. This indicates that directors are aware of areorganisation plan developed at the UBS Asset Management
divisiona level, which may impact the Company. As such, the directors are of the opinion that this creates a materia
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant

sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a
guarantee as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsihility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014

In our opinion, based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:
the information given in the directors report for the financial year ended for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the directors report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary for
the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be readily and
properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting
records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Based on the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the directors report.

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures required by sections 305 to 312
of the Act, which relate to directors remuneration and transactions are not complied with by the Company. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Respective responsibilities

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement set out on page 7 and 8, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financia reporting framework that give
atrue and fair view, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financia statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on the IAASA's website at:
https://iaasa.ie/wp-content/upl oads/docs/media/l AA SA/Documents/audit-standards/Description_of _auditors_responsibili
ties for_audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act
2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’'s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Kieran Daly

for and on behalf of

Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin, 29 April 2025
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Trustee

Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nineteen77 Global Merger Arbitrage Opportunity Fund (“Trust”),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the condensed schedule of investments, as of
December 29, 2023, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Trust at December 29, 2023, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Trust and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for
one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free of
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered materia if there is a substantial likelihood that, individualy or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Trust's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain interna control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
March 28, 2024
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